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CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel). .. This Land Use Committee meeting of June 21, 2006 is now in
session. Good afternoon, Members. We have with us this afternoon... Members Anderson,
Johnson, Kane, and Mateo. Joining us later will be Mr. Hokarna, Molina, and Pontanilla.
Excused is Couucilmember Tavares.

ITEM NO. 38:

CHANGE IN ZONING AND PROJECT DISTRICT PHASE 1 APPROVAL
FOR "HONUA'ULAIWAlLEA 670" RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
(C.c. No. 01-334)

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, this morning [sic) we have before us only one item on the agenda, Land
Use Item 38, a Change in Zoning and Project District Phase I Approval for Honua'ula/Wailea
670 Residential Develop ... , excuse me, Development.
The Committee is in receipt of Couuty Communication No. 01-334, from the former, former
Planning Director, transmitting the following:
A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 19.90,
MAUl COUNTY CODE, AND ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 19.90A, MAUl COUNTY
CODE, PERTAINING TO KIHEI-MAKENA PROJECT DISTRICT 9 (WAILEA 670)". The
purpose of the proposed bill is to grant Phase I Project District Approval to repeal in its entirety
Chapter 19.90, Maui County Code, and establish a new Chapter 19.90A, MCC, relating to
Kihei-Makena Project District 9 to facilitate the development of a residential community
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consisting of up to 1,400 dwelling units, and an IS-hole golf course, with recreational amenities,
and village mixed uses.
A draft bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2171
(1992), RELATING TO KIHEI-MAKENAPROJECT DISTRICT 9 ZONING FOR PROPERTY
SITUATED AT PALAUEA, KEAUHOU, MAUl, HAWAII". The purpose of the draft bill is to
amend Ordinance No. 2171, relating to Kihei-Makena Project District 9, for approximately 402
acres to facilitate the proposed development.
And lastly, a draft bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM
THE AGRICULTURAL AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICTS TO KIHEI-MAKENA PROJECT
DISTRICT 9 (CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT PALAUEA,
KEAUHOU, MAUl, HAWAII". The purpose of the draft bill is to change the zoning from
Agricultural and Open Space Districts to Kihei-Makena Project District 9 for approximately
26S acres to facilitate the proposed development.
Members, this morning...this afternoon we'll be, first be hearing from the applicant and then the
Department, and then we'll be having public testimony. If the applicant or the representative
could please come forward.
MR. JENCKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee. My name is Charlie Jencks, and
you've seen me a number of times before standing right here on different occasions, different
I'm here today representing, as the Chair described,
projects, and different Issues.
Honua'ulalWailea 670.
Briefly, I'm just going to take you through a brief summary then. I'd like to spend a minute with
Mr. John Ford, our, our Natural Resource Conservation Specialist, to bring you up to date on the
conservation plan. Then we're pretty much finished with our, our presentation.
We've had two meetings on this project to date--one was January 4th and the other was on
March 15th of this year--and both of those meetings I think it was abundantly clear that the
project team had done a terrific job working with the community, and that was evidenced by the
fact that we had good attendance at those meetings and in both cases the majority of, of
testimony was in favor of this project for various reasons. The project team has worked with all
of the community associations in South Maui: the KCA, the Makena groups, the WCA, the
Maui Meadows Association--two of them--public agencies, and State agencies, in bringing forth
a project and helping them understand what it is we're trying to accomplish, and that was
self-evident in those two meetings. The result that we have today is good attendance at
meetings, positive support in testimony, and you have in your binders over 300 letters from
people supporting this project, and not letters only from real estate agents--those are, those are
fine letters--but we have letters from Joe on the street and business owners as well who have an
interest in the project and want to perhaps open up a business in the future. You have asked
questions in prior meetings and we have answered those questions, and those responses are in
your file. Some of the questions came from other people that testified and we answered those in
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full and we, and we've met with you and talked to some of you about those responses, and we
have nothing negative coming back and indeed I think the, the responses were timely as well as,
as ... as adequate for the question that was asked.
The project team has worked hard on this project for now five years. We have been out, as I
described earlier, to the community. We've met with the KCA a number of times, developed a
plan that responded fully to their design guidelines and, and responded well to what it is, is they
wanted to see in, in the Project District in South Maui.
The project essentially is consistent with the Community Plan in all respects. It is Project
District 9 in the Kihei-Makena Community Plan. We have different types of housing. We have
affordable and market rate; we have the VMXlCommercial District; we have 80,000 square feet
of Commercial within that District, which is all neighborhood level commercial; we have the
recreational element; we have the Open Space element; we have public and private amenities in
the plan; and also, sites for future public use. So in that respect the project is fully compliant
and, and consistent with the Kihei-Makena Community Plan.
The project, as the Chair described, is presently zoned for Golf Course. We're asking you to
amend that zoning and add the Urban or Residential component to the plan. The affordable
housing component is 30 percent, 420 units .. .210 at 100 percent or less, 210 of those at 100 to
140 percent; and we've discussed with some of you the idea of providing a 6-acre site off-site for
special needs housing, which will have rental units offered in the 50 percent range. So we'll
have potentially housing at the 50 percent range, housing in the, in the 100 percent range,
housing in the 120 and the 140--the full, the increment of affordability in Maui County. The
occupancy rates are 10, 5, and 3 years, respectively. We've also included in our proposal to you,
and we've shown you, various qualifications and resale restrictions on those units, which I think
dovetail fairly well with what Councilmember Mateo has got in his Committee for a land use
policy and affordable housing.
The project is 1,400 units, which is nearly half of what the prior proposal was of2,650. The, the
VMX District is 80,000 square feet versus 9.5 acres that was previously proposed. We have one
18-hole golf course; 90 acres of park in Open Space; over three miles of off-road pedestrian and
bicycle pathways, which is something new to Maui County; private roads, water and sewer.
The plan is cohesive and combines a variety of uses into a smart growth concept. It has a
projected 20-year build-out. We have potable and nonpotable private systems in the project, and
we've ... and our responses to you discuss the cost for those systems; private, public and private
park systems, excuse me; an archaeological preservation and interpretation plan; and a native
plant and propagation conservation program that we've developed that Mr. Ford's going to talk
to in just a few moments.
1'd like, just like to summarize the benefits of the project as we see them in dollar value coming
back to the South Maui community: 16 million in park fees; 5 million towards a new Little
League facility, up from 3.5 million; 7 million in voluntary traffic impact fees; 4., 4.2 in DOE
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fees, that's up from less than $900 a unit to 3,000 a unit voluntarily; 350,000 for the
improvements to Piilani that's already done; 5 million for the projected improvements to Piilani
Highway, from Kilohana to Wailea Ike Drive. That's a total of 36 million in, in improvements
and return to the people in Maui County, especially South Maui. We're here today to answer any
questions you may have and encourage you to get this project to a point where we can have
discussion on conditions and move this project forward to the, to the full Council.
We're ready, willing, and able to build a great project and provide benefits to the people of Maui
County.
One minute for John Ford, and he'll summarize the resource conservation plan, and that ends our
presentation today. Thank you.
MR. FORD: Mr. Chairman, Council Members, my name is John Ford. I am the Program Director and
Senior Biologist for SWCA Environmental Consultants in Honolulu and, as you know, I've been
working with Charlie to help him with natural resource issues related to the development at
Honua ·ula. Since we presented to you the basic concept for our conservation plan in March, I
just wanted to give you a brief update on how the plan is progressing to date.
We continue to work with agency people and with experts in academia both at DLNR and the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service--Jeff Newman, Bill Standley, Fern Duvall, Art Medeiros,
Mike Richardson--to share with them our plans and get their input on how to improve our
conservation plan. We've also evaluated over 40 professional papers by scientists who have
discussed specifically native dry forest plant propagation and dry forest restoration in Hawaii.
We've identified 13 reserves that are currently being actively managed for the protection and
conservation of native dry land forest in Hawaii, and we'll be speaking with the managers of
those preserves to get their input to assist us with the plan. We have updated the plan, we're
continuing to update the plan and integrate the information we learned into what we hope is a
very valuable contribution to the conservation of Hawaiian plants on the property and looking to
develop a set or a network of kipukas on the property that will be very beneficial. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Yoshida, do you have any opening statements?
MR. YOSHIDA: Good afternoon, Committee Chair Carroll, Members of the Committee. My name is
Clayton Yoshida, Administrator of the Current Planning Division with the Planning Department.
With me is Plarming Director Michael Foley. I'm subbing for Colleen Suyama, who's the Staff
Plarmer on this item, who is out on vacation.
The Department has no further comments since the Committee's last meeting of March 15 th , but
the Department will be present throughout the meeting to answer any questions the Committee
Members may have for the Department.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Yoshida. We will now have public testimony. And before we do
that, if there's anyone in the audience that has cell phones or pagers, please tum them off or put
them to the silent mode. Public testimony, you have three minutes and one minute to conclude.
When you come to the microphone, please say your name again so we have it clear for the
record. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Jerry Edlao, to be followed by Joe Bertram III.

.. .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. EDLAO: Good morning, Chair, Committee Members. My name is Jerry Edlao. I'm here in
support of the project. This project has been going on for a long time. I've supported this
project in the past; I support it now. There's been many questions asked, many, many things
asked of the developer that was answered and done to satisfy just about everybody else that
questioned or had ... things, concerns regarding this project. And I'm just here and hopefully
encourage you, Members, to push this forward, and this is the time to do it now. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. And let the record show
that all Members are present, except Ms. Tavares who is excused.
MS. NAKATA: Joe Bertram III, to be followed by Stephen Leis.
MR. BERTRAM: Good afternoon, Members. Good to see you here. My name is Joe Bertram III. I'm
here representing the Kihei Community Association as the Vice President, and just reiterating our
support again. The, the previous application that was for Wailea 670 before was a horror--two
golf courses and a bunch of multi-family, single-family kind of plumped around, some kind of a
shopping center. So this is neighborhoods and this is people walking and biking, and this is
compact development. And so we, we wholeheartedly support it, we stated our support before,
and if, if land is to be developed in South Maui, this is the type of land use pattern that we
wholeheartedly support. We don't want sprawl, we don't want a car-centered, auto-centered
development, and so far this is the one that, that has stepped forward to do exactly that. So we
reiterate our support and I ask, ask for your cons ... , your favorable consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions? One moment, please. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Bertram, for being here.
MR. BERTRAM: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did the, the general membership of the KCA vote on this
recommendation for approval?
MR. BERTRAM: We had brought it before them and yes they, they...there was a, basically a show of
hands. We didn't actually have a formal ballot or anything of that nature.
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: You asked them if they supported this project?
MR. BERTRAM: We asked ... we had made a recommendation as a board that they support
the ...this ... the Honua'ula because it supported our community plan. It was everything that we
had put in in the Kihei 2000 amendment to the General Plan to our community plan back in
1998. And so we, as a board, supported that and we brought it to our general membership as a
show of hands back almost a year and half, maybe more ago when this first started, when
Mr. Jencks first started meeting with us, and it was supported at that time as an informal vote.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That contradicts what I was told earlier that the general
membership did not vote on this.
MR. BERTRAM: We've not had a formal vote. We have not had any, any kind of ballot or anything
like that. What we had was a membership meeting several years back, not even several years--I,
I can't give you the exact time, but I would do that if, if you'd like me to-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's okay, I was at the meeting.
MR. BERTRAM: Oh, okay. Okay. . . . (chuckle) . .. But, yeah, nothing formal was taken. We, we
never polled our membership, if that's what you mean, but we've had informally gotten support
from, from the membership and basically we, we had asked people if they wanted to support our
community plan. And this is exactly what this project does, incorporates every single element of
our community plan that we've asked for--the, the compact development, the mixed use, the
walkablefbikeable ...just everything we put in there. So, I don't know what else we could
do ... even if we put it up for a vote, it would basically still be our community plan, and that was
voted on, I guess, by the Council as well as by others within the Administration. So
whether... even if we had 91 to 42 against or for, we still have to support our community plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did you ask the membership for their permission to send a letter in
strong support ofthis, of this project to the Land Use Committee?
MR. BERTRAM: I must say that we don't always go to the membership and ask for--I think basically
that's what a board of a directors is to do, is to take basically what we have as our charge, which
is to enforce and support the community plan, and that's what we do. If. .. we don't go to each
meeting and ask for a vote of the membership, no we don't.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did you inform the membership that you would be sending this
letter?
MR. BERTRAM: Yes. We have, we have let ... again, I can't tell you the, the meeting it was at, but I do
know that when Honua'ula came before the Community Association, they made a presentation at
that time and we basically said we support Honua'ula because of these reasons. They came and
they made a presentation showing all those reasons. So we followed that up with a letter. It's
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basically standard procedure with every single project that we do. We go out, we make a
presentation, they make a presentation; whatever questions or concerns come up from the
members, we incorporate that into whatever we send as, as a letter of support ... so ... or denial,
whichever does come up. But there was no, no concerns that said to bring this down or to, to
negate it. They all, everyone basically had a few questions which were answered by the
developer, so we followed that up with a letter of support.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I find that interesting because I was told, and I was at the
meeting, that there was no show of hands and there was no vote taken by the general
membership.
MR. BERTRAM: Okay. Well ...
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Bertram.
MR. BERTRAM: You're welcome. That's it?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson... are you finished?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: I'm through. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Stephen Leis, to be followed by Bud Pikrone. . .. Stephen Leis?
MR. LEIS: I apologize. My name is Stephen Leis. I'm a 12-year resident of Maui Meadows. I'm the
President of Dorvin Leis Company, a very communi ... , community-minded company. My
hobby and my community service is coaching youth baseball in Kihei. I was also a past board
member of Kihei Little League.
Over the years I've supported 670 because it's a well-planned, low density proj ect that will
provide benefits to the community that far outweigh any negative aspects. After recently again
reviewing the project, [ haven't changed my mind. I remain in favor of this project, and of
particular interest to me is the $5 million front-end contribution and the $16 million projected
build-out contribution earmarked for parks. If used properly, this will go a long ways towards
building badly needed recreational facilities in Kihei. As a coach for the past 12 years, I can tell
you firsthand that Kihei needs new and improved facilities. I believe that the fields in Kihei are
perhaps the most used or overused facilities in Maui. On a regular basis it's overcrowded; we
share with adult softball and soccer. This is not only unfair to the kids who I think should have
the priority, but it also creates an unsafe situation. The lack of facilities continues to limit youth
participation in recreational activities in Kihei. Over the years we have heard promises for
improvements, but have seen little or no action. I've been repeatedly told there's no money.
That's why I see this as an opportunity and let's not pass it up. It could be a win-win. Let's
move forward without further delay and take advantage of the opportunity to improve
-8-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 21, 2006

recreational facilities in Kihei at the expense of this well-planned development. I ask for your
favorable consideration and approval of this project with reasonable conditions.
Next up on the wish list should be finding a way to get a high school built so that Kih ... , so that
Kihei can have a total sense of community.
Just think to grow up, participate in
extracurriculatory [sic] activities and to go to high school in your own community, it's time,
now's the time. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Chair. Mr. Leis, how many Little League teams
do you have in Kihei?
MR. LEIS: How many Little League teams?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. LEIS: I think the participat. .. , participation's about 300 right now.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Three hundred?
MR. LEIS: I'm not representing Kihei Little League-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, right.
MR. LEIS: --but I do coach down there.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: About 300 kids play Little League?
MR. LEIS: There's four major league teams, there's couple senior league teams, there's probably six
minor league teams, rookie teams, and T-ball teams.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then you share the field with soccer?
MR. LEIS: We share the field on with the softball kids, we share the field with other organizations.
There's limited practice time because the lack of fields. The senior field, which is a regulation
diamond, is orientated so that the .. .it's poorly orientated so that the catcher and batter face the
sun in the afternoon and on a regular basis games are either canceled or practice is suspended.
As a matter of fact, I think it's fairly commonly known--and this is, this is for kids 13 years and
older, that regulation diamond--a lot of teams don't like to come down in Kihei and participate
on our, our field. So it really, it's needed improvement for a long time. There just hasn't been
the funds available to get it done, and we've talked about it now for, I think, you know, 10 to 12
years.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Would you know if Kihei School has a ball field?
MR. LEIS: Excuse me?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: If Kihei School has a ball field or playing field?
MR. LEIS: I don't believe-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know they have a basketball court.
MR. LEIS: Yeah. No, no, the Kihei School doesn't have. There's ...really it's, baseball's limited to just
Kalama Park down there, and actually, you know, with some improvements it could be a fine
facility because it's a beautiful setting, everybody enjoys it down there. It's just. . .it's ... you
know, it's got this problem with the sun and it's, you know, there's not enough, there's more
participation than there is field time and, of course, over the years we had hoped to by now, you
know, see some improvements.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none,
thank you.
MR. LEIS: Thanks.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Bud Pikrone, to be followed by Charles Ridings.
MR. PIKRONE: Committee Chair, my name is Bud Pikrone. I'm here representing the Wailea
Community Association. I have been before this Committee on this property a number of times.
I have noted all of the questions that we had for this project and were attended to by the
developer early on, many years ago, and they continue to work with us on a number of subjects
that we are concerned with, obviously with any time you have additional stress on, on a
community area, and they have been very upfront and very helpful. So, I'm not going to take
much more time on that. I just want to make a statement that this project, you have to ask does it
follow what we consider the law, and that's been brought up, the community plan, and the
answer is yes, it does. It attends to that and goes beyond that. We've heard the testimony about
the parks, we've heard the testimony about road improvements, building a community that is
different than we have in other parts of the, the island. I believe and, and our Association
believes that this is something that is, is good and it's going to be beneficial to the island. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for being here, Mr. Pikrone. At the
last meeting we had in March... you had ...um ... you stated that the Wailea Community
Association supported this project and that Wailea 670 folks had committed to helping you guys
out with various things, such as maintaining shoreline accesses.
MR. PIRRONE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And at that meeting, I believe it was at that meeting, that I
requested if you could give us a letter outlining what those commitments are.
MR. PIRRONE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And you said you would do that?
MR. PIRRONE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I don't see it in our binder.
MR. PIRRONE: Okay, I did resend that. I can make sure you get it again, but I resent it right after that
meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You did?
MR. PIKRONE: Yes. It's a, it's a letter from about 19... 90 something, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it, and it states the commitments that Wailea 670-MR. PIRRONE: It Iists-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: --has made to you guys?
MR. PIKRONE: Yes, yes it does. Yes, it's a signed letter and it does state all of the commitments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, I see Staff's got her fingers on it. Thanks very much.
MR. PIRRONE: Okay... .(chuckle) . .. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Charles Ridings, to be followed by Chuck Hills.
MR. RIDINGS: Mr. Chair and Members of the Council, thank you for allowing me to come and testify
today. I want to make it very clear that I'm not here to testify either for or against Wailea 670.
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What I am here to testify about are the benefits that will accrue to Maui Economic Concerns of
the Community as a result of Wailea 670.
Wailea 670, as partial satisfaction of their affordable housing requirement, has worked out a
transaction with Alice Lee whereby Wailea 670 would donate 6 acres of land to Maui Economic
Concerns of the Community. Most of you know who we are, but basically we have Ka Hale A
Ke Ola Homeless Resource Center, we have Hale Makana 0 Waiale Affordable Rental Complex,
and we also have the Na Hale 0 Wainee Resource Center on the west side. We're providing
services to about 1,200 people per day, including a little over 600 children, and that's people who
are homeless, are formerly homeless who are living with us, and people who earn less than 50
percent of the median family income. The contribution of that 6 acres of land plus the financing
that Alice Lee is working on would help us to be able to get going very quickly. As you all
know, you see the problems with homelessness in the paper very frequently, more frequently
we've ever seen it.
What I'd like to do is to talk about while this would really expand what Wailea 670 is talking
about providing afford ... , affordable housing for ownership for people 100 percent to 140
percent of median, as I understand it the less, the least expensive home in that area will be
$260,000. And I think it's important if you have a pencil handy, Council Members, you might
want to write this down. Basically $260,000, if you put 10 percent down and you've got an
interest rate of 6 percent a year, the monthly payment would be $1,403, and if you assume what
the bank requirement is 36 percent and there's no other debt, that means that an individual or
family would have to earn $46,800 in order to be able to purchase that home. The people that we
are providing services to, 50 percent or less than the median family income, a family of three
earned a maximum of $31,150; a family of four earns a maximum of $34,600. In terms of
homeownership, neither one of these families would be qualified to purchase that $260,000
home. What they need are affordable rentals to be able, to be able to pay their bills, to be able to
save the money that they need, and hopefully to be able to save enough money to be able to step
up to a home that may be built like Wailea 670 or in Wailea 670. And just so you'll know, that
there are a number of families in this, in this particular 50 percent or less than the median family
income. There are 4,000--based on the 2000 census--there are 4,866 households in Maui that are
less than 50 percent ofthe median family income. That is a substantial number of people. These
are people that are holding jobs--if you look at our people that are earning 50 percent or less than
the median family income at Hale Makana and at Na Hale, these are people that are holding one,
two, sometimes three jobs to be able to pay their bills, to be able to send their children to school
and do the things that they want to be able to do.
So what we have a chance to do as a result of the donation of the 6 acres ofland is to be able to
provide services to the special needs group, that is the unsheltered homeless, and in addition to
that to a group of people 50 percent or less than the median family-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
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MR. RIDINGS: --income to my knowledge who are not having any housing or rentals that are currently
being built for that particular 50 percent or less than the median family income. So it's very
important. I wanted to come and talk to you about the benefit of Wailea 670's potential
contribution to Maui Economic Concerns of the Community. As I've indicated to Alice and I
think I had mentioned when I was a resource here on a previous hearing, if, when we get the
land, if we get the land, and we have the funding lined up, we can provide, we can deliver that
entire project within 12 months. And the sooner we start, the better we're going to be because
the homeless issue is not going away and in fact we have more families that are requmng
affordable rentals as a result ofthe increased rentals in Maui.
So, I thank you very much for listening. I would be happy to answer any questions that you may
have, and thank you for your consideration.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Ridings.
MR. RIDINGS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Could you go over those numbers again? The numbers you gave us
based on the amount of homeless, was that in the South Maui region alone or just-MR. RIDINGS: No, I'm talking no the--you mean the 4,866 households? That's 50 percent or less of
the median family income ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. RIDINGS: ... and those are all over the island. That. .. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... the number
of homeless that we, you know, we, you ... all of you remember that there were about 140 people
who were evicted from the breakwater. We have about, as of today, 97 people, mostly families,
on our wait list for our two facilities. We are 100 percent full at Hale Makana 0 Waiale
Affordable Rental Complex and we know that there are more people that are down in the Kihei
area, but I can't honestly give you a count. We know that it varies from day to day. But if you
look at Hale Kaukau, they're serving, I believe, between 70 and 100 meals an evening. They're
not all homeless, but a number of them are.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. It was Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much, Chairman. Mr. Ridings, good afternoon.
MR. RIDINGS: Good afternoon.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I, I guess the issue of, of the 6 acres ... you used the, you know, you
used the word "donation". Is it a donation? Are, are you-MR. RIDINGS: Yes. Yes, sir. Just to give you an idea... and, and this was, this was ...this approach
was formulated by the Administration and it was, the leadership on it was by Alice Lee and then
the Mayor. But basically if you go back to Intrawest. . .lntrawest, a Canadian developer up on
the north end of the island, as satisfaction of their affordable rental requirement donated
$2 million to the West Side Resource Center to finish off the last two buildings. It was a direct
donation to us to be able to do that construction that we did, and the donation of the land, the
way it's currently construeted, would be a direct donation of the land to Maui Economic
Concerns of the Community with restrictive covenants that would restrict the, it would be
restrictive as far as affordable rentals in perpetuity and/or the use of it as a homeless resource
eenter.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, so-MR. RIDINGS: So that it would never be able to be sold in any kind of a commercial form.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Right. So the, the ... your use of the word "donation" only means after
they meet the actual requirements of the affordables, because I believe this is in-lieu of instead of
a donation.
MR. RIDINGS: This is, this will be something between Alice and, and Wailea 670. I don't want to
comment on the timing of it because all I know is that we'll be the beneficiary, but I don't know
the timing of the donation.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Because actually it's a donation to you after it goes through the
affordable requirements altogether. So for my own interest, it is not a donation, sir, at this
particular point. Secondly, Mr. Ridings, I need to ask you because the 6, 6 acres will take up a,
the part of the affordable requirements, like 100 units, can you stand there and tell us that you'll
be able to secure monies or funding necessary for you to build the 100 units that's, that's part of
the negotiation for the 6 acres?
MR. RIDINGS: No, that's not--I'm sorry, I didn't mean to mislead you. The, the configuration that we
have at the West Maui facility on 5 acres is we have, we have a dorm space for 72 homeless
singles, we have 48 units for homeless families, and we have 30 affordable units. That's on
5 acres. If we were to get 6 acres, we probably will be able to add on another two buildings
which would let us build 50 units, but this is not, this is, this--and I don't want to, again, I don't
want to say this because I, I don't have that knowledge. All I know is that we'll be building
these units, and I have no idea how the Administration and Wailea 670 are going to credit that. I
don't get involved in that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So how many units are you looking at, at constructing on the 6 acres?
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MR. RIDINGS: It would be 48 units, emergency transitional for homeless, and 50, approximately 50
units that would be affordable for 50 or for people who earned 50 percent or less to the median
family income.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you, Charlie, for being here. The site, or the 6-acre site
that would be proposed where the units would be, where is the exact location? And this is for the
benefit of the general public.
MR. RIDINGS: The, the ...well, the .. .I, I'll give you the general location. If you, if you come down
into Kihei from Mokulele and you have Tesoro, there is a light industrial park that is, that is
Wailea side of Tesoro Gas Station. At the end of that there is, there's acreage that Wailea 670 has
purchased, and if you were to basically line up the ... subdivision across the street, Ka Ono Ulu
there, that road will go directly across and I believe that's the one that's tentatively scheduled to,
to tie into the Upcountry road. And if you just would draw a line right across the highway and
were to face the mountain, we would be on the left-hand side of that road probably about. ..oh, I
would say 3 to 400 yards up on the left-hand side.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so ... and, and that would be .. .like let's say if you were
looking at a timeline of the construction of any of the improvements associated with that
particular development, what would you be looking at? I know you said you could probably
complete it within 12 months, but I guess the funding and-MR. RIDINGS: The, the ...well, the fund ...that once the land is, that once the land is transferred to us
and once we have the funding either, either committed either in hand or committed, that's what' 11
be the, the triggering event for us to go. Once we get the land, we will begin to do the subsurface
investigation. Charlie Jencks has been kind enough to share with us preliminary subsurface
where they've done test borings. We're going to have to do more. We know there's blue rock up
there and blue rock will have to be taken care of. We just need to know how deep it is. So we'll
do that with the test borings as far as the archaeological inventory. But basically once we're able
to, once the funding has been committed, then we can go and it'll be 12 months from the date
that we actually, we give the contractor the notice to proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And basically, the developer has now committed, you know,
Wailea 670 is now committed to any funding other than the provision of the land, is that correct?
MR. RIDINGS: That is correct. It is just the land.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So it's possible that we, as a County, the State, you know, other
entities, may be approached for contributions towards that?
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MR. RIDINGS: I, I don't know. That would have to be something that Alice would answer. She's
working on additional contributions from developers. I can't tell you. I don't know how much
because, again, I don't get involved in that. That's strictly between the Administration and the
developers. Hopefully if, if everything were to go as we would like for it to go, all of that money
would come from developers, but again I can't make that commitment because Alice is the one
on the lead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson [sic).
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Johnson.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for--excuse me. We always get the two mixed up. Thank
you, Ms. Johnson. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. RIDINGS: Thank you all.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Chuck Hills, to be followed by Judith Michaels.
MR. HILLS: Good afternoon, Councilman Carroll and Members. My name's Chuck Hills. Charlie
handed out awhile back a thing called, ten reasons why you should support this project. Typical
of Charlie, there were ten other things on the other side. I'm not going to read all that to you
today; however, I will address a few comments from that that address points that you're already
familiar with. Last, last week the County supported a seminar with regards to rural planning and
zoning, and principles and techniques about retaining the rural character of Maui and how to go
about planning things for the future.
I believe it was in part of the
program.. . (inaudible) . .. come into compliance with the General Plan. It was a very interesting
presentation, and when I went through this book and the various parts that it had in it prepared
by, one assumes some very, very qualified people, I reflected back on the card that Charlie had
sent out. And in the book they talked about the important things you ought to do in Planning;
they talked about infrastructure, wherein this project supports the General Plan and the Kihei
Plan; they talked about infrastructure capacity, and I believe this project has gone to that place in
terms of the road and in terms of providing for water. Another thing that was brought up was
density controls, and Charlie proposes 2.1 dwellings per acre. The overall scope of this dealt
with planning, with zoning, with preserving the rural character, with environmental issues, and I
know they've taken care of the archaeological concerns and they've done numerous flora and
fauna studies up there. They talked about how to contain the character of the community by
going into pedestrian considerations, and I note in here that also they're talking about pathways,
hiking paths, bikeways, and so forth. There's a drainage master plan and, last of all, there's also
a clear delineation between the project and the surrounding communities.
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I'm in support of this project. I believe you should be in support of it, too. But, more
importantly, I believe you have an opportunity here to vote for and support a process that this
developer went through to bring back to you all the answers that you asked for, to answer all the
questions that you posed to them as well as the associations that surround it. And so, I think that
this is not only a vote in terms of the project, but also the process. That is why I urge you to
support that very much. Thank you.
CHAlR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none.
MS. NAKATA: Judith Michaels, to be followed by Kimokeo Kapahulehua.
MS. MICHAELS: Hello, Judith Michaels, I live in Makena, and good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and
Council Members. I wasn't sure I was going to testify today. Hard to testify in a room with
everyone who has so much support, but I do have a couple of questions and I also wanted to
clarify something.
I was President last year when Charlie Jencks presented the plan of Wailea 670 to the, to the
Kihei Community Association, and that was in March of2005. So that was the date. There were
approximately 45 to 50 members of the community there. It was a lovely presentation and there
was an opportunity to ask questions. We did not ask for a vote, as we usually do not. I think
that's quite a.. .it's .. .in my knowledge I was on the board for three years and have attended a lot
of the Kihei community meetings since 1987, since I bought my home here, and usually what
happens is developers are invited to do a presentation to the community and there's an
opportunity for questions. But I've never attended a meeting where the board actually made a
recommendation. In fact, we usually decide not to do that because we want to allow the
community to ask questions freely without prejudicing their, you know, their thoughts or ideas
about, about what we think. The board at the time--I'm not on the board presently--we did not
take a vote of approval while I was on the board. The board may have done that since I, you
know, am no longer on the board this year, but I just wanted to clarify that issue.
But I do have a couple of concerns. I'm not either for or against this project, but I do have a
couple concerns. The other concern I have--I live in Makena and Wailea and I'm in that area
frequently, of course, every day--l have some concerns about the traffic, the bottleneck in that
particular area. That particular mile area starting from Maui Meadows all the way to Wailea, it's
about a mile stretch which is only two lane, and after 3 o'clock everyday till somewhere... 5:30
sometimes as late as 6:00 it's a bottleneck of about a mile, you cannot get through there.
Yesterday, I was there at 4:30, it took me almost 20 minutes to get through that area and
everybody kept turning and going down through Wailea 'cause they couldn't get through that
bottleneck. So, I think that something, a piece of infrastructure that needs to be addressed prior
to this project being allowed to move forward.
And the other thing is I'm... haven't heard anyone mention this, but I'm concerned about
dropping out of the, of the public golf course. I think this project had been approved for two golf
courses and now we have a golf course, if I understand, unless there's been a change, it's going
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to be private only. And I wonder why we've allowed the public coursc to be dropped out when
there's definitely a need for a course that people who live on this island can afford to play.
'Cause you try playing at Wailea and Makena, people I know who live on this island, except for
about 1 percent of the population and most of those are part-time residents, can't afford to play
there. So, I think we desperately need a public course for those of us who live on Maui who
don't have that type of money. Also, I think that if you're going to allow them to drop out that
public golf course-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. MICHAELS: --that's about 200 acres. And so what are they giving back for that 200 acres that
you're going to allow them to zone to build homes on? I know they've been very generous in
many areas, but I think you should, I'd like you to look carefully or consider carefully what
you're going to get in exchange; and also the ballpark, that 6-acre ballpark, if I understand, they
want to eliminate that. I think we need more parks right in that community. And if we're going
to have affordable housing there, we need sizeable parks, not in Kihei, but right in that
Wailea 670 community. So, I would ask you to look at those issues before you make a
determination. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. MICHAELS: Thank you.
MS. NAKATA: Kimokeo Kapahulehua, to be followed by Richard Michaels.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Good afternoon, Chairman Carroll. My name is Kimokeo Kapahulehua, and
good afternoon to the Members. I'm here representing Na Kupuna 0 Maui. 1'd like to introduce
several of the kupunas with us today in respect to them being present and also being on the
project with Mr. Jencks: Olivia Silva, Annie Kekona, Stanely Chock. These kupunas are 3 of
about 16 or 18 kupunas that had participated in going up to Honua'ula in the last couple of years.
And why, why the kupuna here? The kupuna here to work with the developer or to let the
developer know about the land and the respect to the land and what he is doing with the land.
The kupuna was privileged to see the archaeological findings that's on Honua 'ula and having to
know that these sites are being protected and signage that will be given in the, in the future, and
also some kind of a boundary so they'd be able to see that. In addition to that, they're involved
just recently with Mr. John Ford in knowing about the plant preservation plan on, on Honua'ula.
Also in previous years, the State of Hawaii had a ruling that we needed to check about the
Hawaiian bat ifit was ...their living quarters on Honua'ula. So kupuna was also there to know
that this process went on, and they found no evidence of any Hawaiian bat that lived on
Honua'ula. Besides that, they also asked about the owl and knowing the owl, whether there was
a house of the owl up there or the pueo. So kupuna's interest is preserving and protecting
Hawaiian culture and its uses up there, and making sure that the future mo' opuna, which is the
grandchildren, would be able to see some of this. So kupuna was very... happy to be involved
and working together in making sure that these things are there and able to be protected and
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preserved for the future. Na Kupuna 0 Maui supports the project on these efforts because of
these things that they preserve. You do know that kupuna don't have a growing income that's
going to tell them they're going to be one of those people that living on affordable housing there.
So kupuna still. .. supports it for the efforts of the future benefit, the future benefit of the
mo 'opuna again, their kids, children, that will be attending schools, that funds will be provided
by this project to make sure that we have the highest education for our future and our children,
grandchildren. So we thank you for the time you've given us and we, Na Kupuna 0 Maui,
supports Honua 'ula.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good afternoon, Kimokeo. To, to your
knowledge was, did at any time the developer had bring up discussions about possibly
implementing Hawaiian style architecture in, into the project that you know of?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: That's a negative on that, but they did talk about. .. not Hawaiian architectural
for their development, but we did have many discussions about a Hawaiian culture village for the
project. .. ofworking with the community up there in Honua'ula.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Kimokeo. Thank you very much for coming today. Because I
know you work with a lot of youth programs and also in the schools have quite a relationship
with a lot of the kids in the Kihei area, my question has to do with the transporting of a lot of the
youth over to particularly high school and then the participation and activities, like the canoe
paddling and other things. What do you believe this particular development offers in terms of
some kind of assurance that there will be some kind of facility that the children can actually live,
be educated in, and recreate in the community of South Maui or Kihei? What is there that really
helps the mo'opuna?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: I think what helps the mo'opuna, if you look on their plan, they did put in
there a bus transportation spot for the future bus route or if there's any type of transportation to
be available, they made a section in there where the bus can go in and out to pickup the, the
children either in that area or close to that area. So the, the youth program has been looked at,
they have a, a park in there, like a little park, and working with other, other parks in South Maui.
So, I think that. .. that will come in its years of growth. We talked about a 20-year outgrowth.
So, I think on a 20-year outgrowth we definitely will have our youth program not only in place
for the start, but also in the middle and in the end.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But, more specifically, the high school. Because, you know,
you're supportive always of the youth activities, what is it about this project that helps strengthen
the families, that keeps the kids in the one location? What has the developer done to allow the
children to be educated, recreate and actually be able to live in this area, instead of being
transported through a bus to another community?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Well, I think, Jo Anne, Council, Councilmember Jo Anne, that the Honua'ula
do not have any elementary or middle school or high school on its property projected. So they're
all going to be transported out. All those who live in the affordable housing that they're, they're
talking to provide those families .. .like the neighbor next door, Maui Meadows, do not have any
projection in Wailea, Makena area at this time for any school next door. The, the nearest school
that we have to this project will be Kamalii School, and so they will definitely be transported out
to Kamalii, Lokelani, Kihei, the Charter High School that we have present, and hopefully a new
high school that we're talking about with the State.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Kimokeo, for being here.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are any of the members of Na Kupuna 0 Maui from the Wailea,
Makena area?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: We have members, Na Kupuna 0 Maui is from the Wailea area. Papa Chang
and the Mama Chang is the kupunas we have down there; the Luuwais, they're in Na Kupuna 0
Maui. They're, they're the only residents that we have had in Na Kupuna 0 Maui and
discussions about what's up there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And when you say Papa Chang and Mama Chang, who you're
referring to?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Eddie Chang.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
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MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Thank you very much, Members.
MS. NAKATA: Richard Michaels, to be followed by Lucienne deNaie.
MR. MICHAELS: Good.. .{cleared throat} . .. excuse me, good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Members of
the Committee. My name is Richard Michaels, I live in Makena, and I came here today to tell
you a little bit about what's going on in our area because I'm not sure how many of the Council
Members get to visit the Wailea area very often. So, as you consider this project. I'm not here
necessarily to oppose Wailea 670, but I, I have some thoughts that you might consider.
My, my home is at Makena Surf Condominium. I have to drive through Wailea to get anywhere,
and right now as you come up Wailea Alanui on the mauka side of the road directly opposite the
Grand Wailea Hotel, there's a massive condominium project under construction. Huge amounts
of fill there. Right on the road there's a very large rock wall on the north end, the wall being 6 to
10 feet high. As you come--and, of course, a lot of construction involved in that. The right lane
of the mauka side of Wailea Alanui is coned off every weekday for construction traffic. At the
north end of that on the makai side is the entrance to the almost-finished Wailea Beach Villas,
which has a gate and a guard right there on the highway. They, of course, have now finished
their heavy construction. Then you turn up Wailea Ike to, toward Piilani Highway, you drive
through several holes on the Wailea Blue Golf Course. What you can't see is that there are two
other condominium projects on the Wailea Blue Golf Course under construction at, at the
moment right now. The intersection of Wailea Ike and the Piilani Highway, of course, is right
where Wailea 670 is right in front of you. There is about one and a quarter miles from that
intersection to the light at Kilohana, and as my wife just testified in front of me, that becomes a
bottleneck. We came by there about 1 o'clock today and it wasn't too bad, but it's now 2:30 and
I would say in the next 45 minutes or so that will start, the traffic will start building and if you
are trying to leave the Wailea area between 3:00 and 5:00, you can figure on about five or six
lights to get past Kilohana. That's without any of the construction that would go on at Wailea
670. There's also a construction project right at the light across from the fire station at the corner
of Kilohana and Piilani.
So one of the considerations that I have and that I would like you to consider is that the if they
were gonna, if we're gonna widen Piilani Highway to four lanes, from Kilohana up to Wailea,
that that should be done before this project begins. You might even consider whether or not a
construction road above Maui Meadows might even be in everybody's favor. Because if they
start, as they start moving earth to build the golf course before there's even any homes there--and
we're talking about some major, major equipment, a lot of dirt and a lot of traffic. So, I don't
know that Piilani Highway can handle that.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. MICHAELS: The way it is right now, I mean we were, we were coming home a couple of weeks
ago on Piilani Highway and the traffic stopped all of a sudden. We learned later that there was a
fatal accident on Piilani. And what, of course, happens is that, one, the motorists don't even
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know why the traffic has stopped; two, it takes maybe an hour to, to get through, and that's with
only just a few people trying to get from one place to another. Ifthere was ever an emergency in
South Maui where everybody had to leave at the same time, all the tourists from the hotels and
the condos as well as all the residents, I mean I don't know how we would handle that. So, I
think it's a major consideration to talk about the, the ... as a condition the, the highway and how
we're going to, how we're going to get out of there. Thank you very much. Appreciate it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. NAKATA: Lucienne deNaie, to be followed by Tricia Morris.
MS. deNAIE: Aloha, Committee Chair Carroll and Members of the Council. My name is Lucienne
deNaie, I'm testifying today as a private citizen on the matter before you. I've made some
comments in the past, some, some questions and, and you folks all came up with some great
questions over the last. ..period between now and your last meeting. And I hope that the
answers are forthcoming for some of these very, very worthwhile questions, including exactly
what it's going to be like to buy one of these affordable houses; what a person's water and
sewage bill is going to be; and what kind of provisions are going to be made for groundskeeping
fees, whether those are factored into all of the homeowner's fees or whether they are just applied
to the golf, golf club members. These are things that I think we see that we have good ideas in
the past--Maui Lani is a great example ofthis--you know, it was a great idea, it was going to be a
mixed community, it was going to be a lot of needed housing for Central Maui, and as time goes
on different aspects of it aren't discussed too much and then we find they come back to haunt us,
and all of a sudden something's happened and we're all shocked. It's kind of like we lose, we
lose the chain of command of accountability on some of our larger projects. This project has
been through so many different promises--it's had parks; it's had schools; it's had public golf
courses; it's supposed to be doing ... surveys of our water quality because of drainage impacts;
it's had a range of archaeological review, some of which showed nothing, some of which showed
something. It's a big thing, it's a really big thing. And my feeling is, is that when you look at
something like this that doesn't have a clear shot at what exactly it's going to be providing, you
need to look at your list of priorities. We're seeing that shipping right now is a problem here. So
every time we have a development, one of the things that needs to be factored in is everything
for this development needs to get on a boat and get here. Now is that going to be competing with
the things that need to get here for Hawaiian Home Lands' projects or other projects that we
really are encouraging in other parts of Maui? If so, maybe we just want to look and see what
we want to come first and what we want to come second. And my way of thinking, this project
because there are no public services available for it, because it was originally conceived--and if
you look in your community plan, it's described as located manka and makai of the proposed
Piilani Highway extension, mauka of Wailea Resort and south of Maui Meadows. Now there is
no Piilani Highway extension. This was thought of as a good idea because there was going to be
that road and this would be a logical place to put development if that road exist. That road does
not exist. So .. .I wouldn't fast track this project if! were one of you. I would give our priorities
in resources to those projects that actually have some roads to serve them, have some water or at
least the hope of some water to serve them-- 22 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the Couuty of Maui
June 21, 2006

MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. deNAIE: --have their own sewage, have sewage capacity someplace, and are close to 100 percent
affordable housing in a way that might stay sustainable for a long period of time. If you're
absolutely convinced that this is really going to be sustainable affordable housing, then, you
know, I bow to your judgment. But if you're not, keep asking those hard questions so we don't
end up with another Maui Lani. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. NAKATA: Tricia Morris, to be followed by Thomas Cook.
MS. MORRIS: Hello, Council Chair Carroll and Council Members. Good afternoon. I'm Tricia
Morris, I've been a resident here for 23 years, and I've never been asked or never spoken in
support of a project before. I'm a resident of Maui Meadows and, as you know, there's been
some controversy from Maui Meadows residents about this project. I think the develop ...
--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ...working through issues, and one thing that I've been very
supportive of in my time on Maui is let's have developments that are responsive and that are
beautiful. Let's not put up a lot of cookie cutter homes that detract from the environment which
draws visitors to our island, which is what really makes our island work. And in this case I think
we have not only a beautiful project, but a community responsive project, and I really think that
we should support getting this built because they've been through years now of scrutiny and, and
that just adds cost to everything.
So, I just wanted to lend my voice and my husband's voice to supporting a property that will
bring people to the island, it will support our environment, and is responsive to the needs of the
community. So thank you for your time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Thomas Cook.
MR. COOK: Good afternoon, Councilman Carroll and Council. My name is Thomas Cook. Thank you
for the opportunity to present testimony. I'm here in support ofthis project. Surprised?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(chuckle) . ..
MR. COOK: A little humor for you. But. .. the regulatory process that our Federal, State, County
government has has good intentions. I, I'd like just you to keep in mind the intent of all the
ordinances and all the regulatory process and the hearings. This project has shown a tremendous
amount of tenacity. It has morphed and evolved over time by listening to the community. I think
to me something that. .. one of the reasons I'm really supportive of this project is this project has
roots, it has local roots. Not many developers would have been as committed to this community
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and committed to the project to listen, to change, to adapt. As you know, I'm a very, very strong
advocate of affordable housing. It's, it means a lot to me, our children, our community, to build a
community. This project is extremely generous in its affordable housing component. I think
these people have the resources to do it. It's in the, the affordable housing component, it's in the
development. Okay. And the fact that there's schools that are down the road, schools are down
the road for all of them. It's a relatively self-contained development as far as the sewage, the
water, the infrastructure. It's all going to be paid for by the developer. Several million dollars
that's mentioned is going to be contributed to the community. As a contractor--I'm giving
testimony as an individual, by the way--but as a contractor I know that hundreds of millions of
dollars will be paid in wages into our community, and those trucks do have impact on the road
and they are inconvenient, and everyone of the homes that you live in was an inconvenience to
somebody. And this is a 20-year build-out, it's not going to be a 20-year traffic jam; it's going to
be done in phases. The initial site work will have an impact to the community. It's also going to
have a huge benefit to the community for many, many, many, many, many years.
So, I urge you to come forward with how you feel about this project and let's move it on. Okay.
I'm, I'm glad that you're being really conscientious and focusing on it. I respect the fact that
you've had the three hearings this year, it's huge, but it's time to pass it on to the Council so
everybody can vote on it. In my opinion, okay, you guys have a lot to do. So, I encourage you
to pass it on to the full Council and so that you can put some reasonable conditions on it. If you
ask for too much... from anybody, you know, there's ... everybody has limits. So let's be
reasonable. Let's build a community. What's a good community? A community where people
have ... are playing and working and interacting with people. It's not just about having money.
So thank you for the opportunity, but, please, move this on.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
expect you to support it.

Thank you, Mr. Cook, for being here... and yeah, we would

MR. COOK: ... (chuckle) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You said this project has local roots.
MR. COOK: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I may be mistaken, but isn't the major owner of this property a
group out of California, WCPT?
MR. COOK: Uh-huh. I think if you look, I--yes, Michelle--but I think if you look at any... capital is
global. You're not going to get this kind of capital from the local market. What I mean by roots
is that people are engaged and involved in the community. Charlie Jencks and most of the
consultants that have been involved in this, the people who will build it, you know, the affordable
housing component. .. the ...will be utilized, built by and managed and utilized by the local
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community. If you're going to look at the ownership as far as capital, you know, my house is
owned by some banking conglomerate somewhere.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I'm just trying to clear up your, what your definition of local
roots meant.
MR. COOK: Right. My local, my definition of local roots is people who have been involved and are
committed to our community and not in a transient. .. for this particular economic cycle
convenience. I've seen that these people have been here and I believe that they'll be here, the
management team and the people who are implementing it, through the next down cycle. We are
going to have a slow period. It's hard for everybody to believe, but they'll be here then.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: You know, that's okay. Just stick to the question, Mr. Cook.
MR. COOK: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just wanted to clarify something.
meeting we've had this term on this project.

This

IS

only the second

MR. COOK: Oh, okay. I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Last term Mr. Jencks declined bringing his project forward when
he had a chance because he wasn't ready, and I can see he's done some reconfiguring, whicb is
good, and also the term before that, he also declined an opportunity to come forward. So, I just
want to get that on the record and that none of the Council Members sitting here yet have had a
chance to ask any questions on the record.
MR. COOK: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The last meeting was all public testimony and presentation. So,
you know, I know you want to get this done fast, but you golla let us do our job, too, because
we're here representing the whole community and this project will impact everybody. So, I just
wanted to get that clear.
MR. COOK: Thanks. I stand corrected on that, and I know you do care deeply.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much for coming, Tom. I know that you're there
wearing your private hat today, but just out of curiosity because a number of my friends have
been trying to get people to do work on their houses or repair projects. What is the employment

- 25 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 21, 2006

situation in the construction industry? Is it. .. are there lots of jobs floating around out there
that-MR. COOK: Right now it's pretty much, if you look at the statistics and you try and hire somebody, it's
full employment and it's been like that for a period of time. Interest rates have been low for an
unusually long period of time historically. So we do have full employment now. The
construction industry tends to be--what's the word?--(inaudible) cycles.
The
residential. .. my... to answer your question, I believe the residential component is what has the
best opportunity for sustainability. The commercial, like hotels and some of the bigger proj ects,
they're built and they're gone. So there's like a peak. The residential development, especially
now that you're incorporating the affordable housing component, has a really good opportunity
to add some sustainability to the construction industry on the island.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and just basically to, I guess, get a little bit more
information, too, about what is going on in the construction industry. Because the affordable
component, we've been experiencing a lot of problems with cost overruns, bids coming in way
above what actual allocations are. So has that been your experience, too, rising gas prices, are
they escalating the cost of materials as well?
MR. COOK: Oh, definitely. Fuel prices have gone up significantly. We need to look for more
sustainable local building systems. Oil, Hurricane Katrina, China, global demand--yes,
construction materials has escalated significantly in the last three years.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and one final question along the same lines, because
I've been receiving reports of a lot of contractors or construction people coming in that are not
licensed. There's been, I guess, some difficulty in--I don't know, what would you say?--getting
local help that is duly licensed, and a lot of the people are getting upset about it. Have you seen
any of this in your area specifically, and I don't know, I'm assuming you do some work in Kihei
or maybe the majority of your work in Kihei, because these are the reports I'm getting from West
Maui. Is that going on?
MR. COOK: It's common. It's a statewide issue. At a recent HICH meeting on Oahu, we discussed the
Handyman Law. They felt there was ... at. .. the, the discussion to increase the limits on
Handyman Law, which is basically non-licensed contracting. Part of the discussion was to
streamline the contracting license permit process to enable smaller businesses to qualify for their
licenses. So it's ... getting qualified people who are licensed and insured is a challenge. Part of it
is the regulatory process. It's a good thing. Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
wants to protect, protect the consumer, but it's a filter. So there's a lot of people with talent
maybe that just don't have that capital and just can't meet that. .. the, the paperwork
requirements, but they could come change your door and build you a deck. So that's kind of the
balance of a regulatory process and entrepreneurial. .. blending together.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, Tom. Appreciate it.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none,
thank you.
MR. COOK: Thank you. Have a wonderful day, aloha.
MS. NAKATA: The last testifier who has signed up is David Frazier.
MR. FRAZIER: Aloha, Chair Carroll, Committee Members, my name is David Frazier. I'm the current
President of the Kih ... , Kihei Community Association, and I just wanted to see if! could clarify
a couple of questions that were asked earlier with regard to the KCA and how it operates and the
support, and respond to, to Judith Michaels' testimony. She's quite correct when she says that
therc was never a formal vote taken by the membership.
The KCA operates on a very fluctuating membership base. Last year I think, as an example,
probably when that meeting happened, we had about 140 active members, and I don't recall nor
did we do a census normally on the exact number of members that might have been at one
meeting. But just like with all kinds of projects that we have the opportunity to review
informally that are passed down to us, we do it with many, many projects. We're right in the
middle of basically looking at six different projects right now that are much smaller than the
Wailea 670, but the process is is that we have a planning committee that looks at it and then it's
recommended to the board, whether the board will support a particular project, and that my
understanding is, is what we have thus far supported as the KCA Board. The KCA Board is
elected in the November meeting by the general membership to represent the interest of the
Kihei Community Association and they passed that, that responsibility on to us as board
members and we have carried it thus far to support the Phase I component of Wailea
670fHonua·ula. And the reason why we've done that primarily is because of the benefits that we
think that that project's going to bring to South Kihei and because of the money that it's going to
bring to South Kihei, for the infrastructure in South Kihei, which we all know needs
considerable, and people have testified about it today with regard to roads, several other things
which needs attention, and we think this is a huge opportunity to get some attention in South
Maui in the term, in the form of dollars for the South Maui area.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Frazier, for being here and I appreciate you
coming forward. You got, you said that--well, first of all, how many members are on the board?
MR. FRAZIER: Thirteen.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thirteen. And you said that you folks support Phase I. What is
Phase I?
MR. FRAZIER: Well, we support this, this component of moving the project forward from, for this, for
the Phase I for the-- 27 -
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, you mean Project District Phase I approval?
MR. FRAZIER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And then, and then could you be a little bit more specific
about what you see as the benefits to South Kihei?
MR. FRAZIER: We see the benefits from the standpoint of the board is that this plan follows pretty
much to the letter and, and then goes beyond... the... as near as we've all been able to ascertain
the Kihei-Makena Community Plan. We like the fact that this project incorporates roundabouts.
We like the fact that this project is, is the first to be very pedestrian friendly. We like the smart
growth concepts that are used within this, this project. There's, there's a number of items that we
liked in the project. We're not saying that we've answered all the questions, we're not saying
that we've answered all the, all the potential objections to it. But by and large as a, as a board,
we felt that the good that this project would bring to the community over the course of the next
20 years followed the community plan, followed the desires of the people, the informal input that
we've had during our meetings--and we've had many of 'em--and the comments and, and input
that we've had from the people that are on the KCA Board. We are all most interested in
maintaining South Maui as a viable, great place to live, and we think that this, this project carried
forth with whatever kinds of components that need to be corrected in it is going to be that in
terms of bringing in additional tax dollar base, in terms of bringing in additional park funds, in
terms of bringing in additional funds for. .. for the South Kihei area in general and the South
Maui area in general, and it's not without, you know, high contention--we understand that--but
we think that it's a good project overall and it's one of the first ones that we've seen designed
with these kinds of con ... , the smart growth concepts in mind.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. So primarily you see the benefits, besides the
economic benefits, you see the benefits as the design for the project, the, the smart growth
design, the pedestrian friendly? Those are, those are the benefits that you just enumerated for
me, so I'm assuming that's the bulk of the benefit that you see to the project besides, aside from
the tax base and, and the park funds?
MR. FRAZIER: Yeah. And I would .. .if, if I weren't, if I had more time to think about it, I could, I
could probably enumerate what the benefits that we see, but I would want to, once again, take it
back to the board and do that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And did you guys consider the extension of or the lack of
extension of Piilani Highway, and also the widening of Piilani from Kilohana to Wailea Ike in
your determination? I mean was that something you considered?
MR. FRAZIER: You know, I know it was talked about. .. but. .. and, and from the standpoint of whether
or not we ruled it out because of that for the general support of it so far, the answer is no we did
not rule it out over that particular issue.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. FRAZIER: Uh-huh.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Frazier. Couple of questions.
You currently are the sitting President of Kihei Community Association?
MR. FRAZIER: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Joe Bertram III, is he the current Vice President of Kihei Community
Association?
MR. FRAZIER: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Because Mr. Bertram came forward as a representative and the Vice
President of the KCA, and as President do you concur with his representations that were made on
behalf ofKCA to this body this afternoon?
MR. FRAZIER: I concur.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: By implication of the questions and answers as well as testimony, it's
being implied that his testimony is inaccurate. So, again, I'll ask you the question to reiterate
your response. Mr. Bertram Ill's testimony to this body, in your opinion, was accurate?
MR. FRAZIER: Can you, can you restate what you think that that was before I go there?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: We had testimony and we have a Council Member implying that his
testimony was incorrect with respects to a vote that was taken and a show of hands in a
community meeting, and I'm asking you if you concur with the statements of your
Vice President of the Kihei Community Association?
MR. FRAZIER: To the best of my recollection, I concur and, and if I can expand on that the reason why
I concur, is that what we do in the community meetings is oftentimes we will have a planner
present what their program is, and basically we react to, we open it up for questions and we react
to the, we react to the group ...however many people are in there and if someone is vociferously
against, you know, we would react to that as well and, and take that away with us. But in, in
terms of a formal vote or in terms of, of an actual hands up all. .. or all for or all against,
Mr. Kane, I do not, I, I cannot say one way or the other. I, I don't have a recollection of that
evening to that degree.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. And the reason I ask is simply to clarify that we have both the
President and the Vice President of KCA testifying in their official capacities, in their official
positions stating something that has been.. .I guess stated in questions, as well as another
testimony of a former President of KCA that have conflicting information. So as gathering
information, I'm trying to do my best, Mr. Chair, in finding out which is, what, what is it, what is
the truth because that's what's going to help us make decisions. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are there any further questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. Since Mr. Kane feels this is important and it's become an
issue, I want to make a clarifying statement. I had a meeting with the KCA Board, of which
Mr. Frazier was present, this was right before Budget, and the letter of support from the board
had been received ...maybe a month and a half previous to that. And so I brought it up at the
board meeting to the membership before we even started our, our talk about Budget, and I
wanted to know why they supported it because the letter is ... you know, it's a nice letter, but it's
not very detailed. So, I wanted to know why they supported it and ifthere was a vote of the, of
the general membership. And... l don't know if this will jog your memory or not, Mr. Frazier,
but 1 was told at that meeting that there was not a vote of the general membership, but that the
board felt that the membership ... supported it because after the presentation nobody said it was a
bad idea. . . .(chuckle). .. So it wasn't like there was a general vote. And if Mr. Bertram
remembers it that way, maybe there was another discussion that I wasn't a part of after that
period of time, but 1 think it's important that people know when, when you're saying that your,
that your membership or that your community association supports something, what does that
reflect? Does that reflect the whole membership, does that reflect the board, which you're
saying now does, and that you're elected to represent the general membership. So that's okay,
too, but 1 just think it needs to be clear. Is this, does this mean 140 people have all voted to
support this, or does it mean 13 people have vote to support it? And that's why I asked the
question, Mr. Chair. And if, and if Mr. Frazier would like to further clarify that, I, I would like to
give him the opportunity.
CHAIR CARROLL: What I would like to do is ask you if you could forward a copy of the minutes of
your meeting to the Committee so 1 can distribute it to the Members.
MR. FRAZIER: Yes, sir, I will look for that and, and get it to you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Of the meeting in question.
MR. FRAZIER: The, the general. .. the public meeting in question?
CHAIR CARROLL: And any other minutes that would be appropriate that are referring to the item at
hand.
MR. FRAZIER: Sure. Can 1 respond to ... ? Okay. The other thing I just want to clarify, yeah, 'cause I
feel like I'm on the hot seat about this now, is that the KCA is an all volunteer group, okay, and
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we are elected by an all volunteer organization of people that fluctuates, and we have about
probably 25,000 people in South Kihei area; and I can attest to the fact that over the past 12
months we have been diligent and adamant about trying to get membership and people interested
in South Kihei. There have been numerous articles which many of you have seen. We have
done mailer solicitation, we have done all kinds of. .. over the past and current to try to get
community input and-CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, excuse me one moment. Ms. Anderson, is this the question that you are
requesting a response to? 'Cause we've already gone over the KCNs operations.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just wanted to give him an opportunity to further clarify his
position or the, the KCNs position based on what I had just said. So, I think that's only fair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay.
MR. FRAZIER: I'll be, I'll be really brief. What I can say about that is that in those meetings we, we
try, we do our best to solicitate membership. When we're elected as officers, we do our very best
to carry out what we think is the will of the people for South Maui by, by eliciting as much
response as we possibly can, and I can assure you we take our charge down there just as
seriously as the people that elect you, people to make decisions based on the people for the entire
island. And so that's what I can say with regard to our, our concern in trying to respond
effectively on behalf of South Kihei. The mandate of, of the Kihei Community Association is to
improve and, and create a high quality of life in South Maui, and we take that charge very
seriously.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. FRAZIER: Thank you.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one else has signed up to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery that wishes to give testimony at this time? Please
come forward. Identify yourself at the microphone and after you give testimony, please go to the
desk and fill out the form.
MR. VICENS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Mercer "Chubby" Vicens and I'm, I apologize
for not signing up earlier; I arrived a little late on the scene. But I am here in support of the
project that Mr. Jencks is speaking of. I have personally been to at least four of the
presentations, and they've actually gotten better as they went along because the feedback from
the community and, and others. And I think that as late as last Saturday, Mr. Jencks took the
time to come to a... a Maui Nui Housing Affordable Task Force meeting for people who have
never ever believed or attempted to believe that they could qualify for an affordable home.
There were about 40 people there, everyone bearing their souls, their credit lines, et cetera, so
that they at least could understand what their role is towards buying an affordable home or
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renting one. Mr. Jencks was there with his project and did an absolutely great job of explaining
to the people in detail and stayed around to explain in private to the people that were there
exactly what their project let. I think that they've tried to address all of the questions. I'm sure
this body will have other questions for Mr. Jencks to, to address.
I, I heard comment about the widening of, of the, the road in the last half a mile, last mile. I had
a meeting with Mr. Cajigal about a week ago and specifically asked him about that. He has had
conversations with Mr. Jencks, was my understanding, and Mr. Jencks can either. .. clarify that
point, but it is their belief that there will be participation, they will finish the road, and it'll
relieve some of the ... some of the traffic that the Michaels spoke about during that particular
time because the State already owns the land. They got about 1,500, 1,800 lineal feet along that
road and they are willing and able to work with the contractor to the best of my knowledge. That
was, that was the question I asked and that was the answer I received. So, Mr. Jencks has
worked on this for a long, long time. I think the longer we put it out into the future the more
expensive it becomes. It will not get any cheaper. So ifit's a good project, then I, I ask this body
to take a good look at it, ask the hard questions and in, in the end if the .. .if it looks like fertile
soil, let's approve it. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Vicens, your informal conversation with Freddie
Cajigal from the DOT, as, as far as the road improvement, what section are you talking about? Is
it from the traffic light on Kilohana towards Makena or is it from the intersection that goes down
Wailea, Wailea Ike towards Makena?
MR. VICENS: No, it's the .. .it's on, it's on the main highway at the last stoplight where Maui
Meadows, you make a left tum into Maui Meadows and down to the bend ofWai ... , Wai ... , the
Alanui where the, where the project is off on the left. I'm talking about that 1,800 feet or
so ... that's the property. He says they own the property and they're willing to, to work with,
with the developer.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Vicens, for being here. It's my
understanding that that's a requirement of DOT that that extension be, or not extension, excuse
me, the widening to four lanes be required. It's also a requirement in our community plan. I'm
just wondering if you ...when you were speaking with Mr. Cajigal, if you, if you got any
indication from him if the State ever intends to consider the Wailea, the Piilani extension?
MR. VICENS: That I did not get into.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: You didn't talk to him about it?
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MR. VICENS: No. I was, I was just asking him about it because I had been down there and the traffic
was pretty heavy-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Right.
MR. VICENS: --and I asked, you know, how he, how he thought they would address that, and he says
that he, we're willing to work with the contractor. As a matter of fact, the State is willing to, to
tum the land over and make that their contribution. And as you pointed out earlier, there are
homes being built on the makai side of that highway and I, you know, I don't think it's the
responsibility of one particular developer to bear the whole burden, and, and I don't know where
Mr. Jencks is with that. All I know is that the State is willing to work with him and other
developers to make that happen.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
MR. VICENS: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier. Hearing none, thank you.
MR. VICENS: Thank you for your time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone else that wishes to give testimony at this time on this agenda item?
Hearing none and no objection, we will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed .
. . •END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, it's time for our afternoon break. ... We will break for ten minutes and
meet at 3:17 p.m. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- Recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

3:07 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:25 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee of June 21, 2006 is now back in session.
Members, the first Department we are going to hear from is Water. We have Mr. Tengan here. I
will ask him to .. .if he has any remarks before I open to questions from the floor. Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As I understand, the developer is proposing to do a private
water system for both domestic and irrigation uses. Our estimation of water that's going to be
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required for the project is 1.3 million gallons of potable water and 930,000 gallons a day for
irrigation of the golf course and road landscaping. That's the only comments I have, other than
as I stated earlier, the developer is proposing a private water system.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Tengan. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I wasn't quite ready. . . .{chuckle} . .. You
know, has there been any testing done on the wells? Do you know, Mr. Tengan?
MR. TENGAN: I'm sure they have done testing, but I'm not privy to that information.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you don't know what process he's in at all with the State
Department of Health on approval?
MR. TENGAN: Well, I would, I would think that they would fall ... since there would be a private
purvey of water, they would be subject to the same Drinking Water Act requirements that we are
subject to, which would include ... treatment of contaminants and chlorination of water.
Basically that would be it.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Do you know what aquifer that this project is going to be drawing
water from?
MR. TENGAN: I'm not sure of the exact name of the aquifer, but I do believe it's above the Kihei area
or above the project area. I'm not, I'm not sure as to the exact location. But I guess the
developer could give us that information.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
development of these wells?

So have they been

III

contact with you at all about the

MR. TENGAN: No, other than to mention that, you know, they're doing a private water system, and
when, when someone does a private water system, we're pretty much out of the picture on that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would you happen to know--I know you don't know the name of
the aquifer--but would you happen to know the sustainable yield?
MR. TENGAN: No. But that information, based upon the location of the well, could be easily looked
up by looking at that map that we ... the State Water Commission maintains on their website. So
it's, you know, something that we could readily look up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I'm, I'm just going to ask you this question because I want to
get it on the record, but I'm really not expecting you, based on your answers, to have the answer.
There's two on-site wells right now and it's my understanding that they, they arc for irrigation
purposes only. Are you aware of that?
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MR. TENGAN: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you have any knowledge of the wells that are currently there
on the property?
MR. TENGAN: No, I don't.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson, would you like to call the applicant down? Perhaps they can
answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yes, please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objections to calling the applicant forward?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would the applicant or the representative please identify himself at the
microphone. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Jencks, why don't you just give us--you heard the questions.
So if you could just give us some basic information, and, and we're not in this big a hurry as you
are, so if you could just slow your answers down a little bit so we can write them down, I'd
appreciate it. .. .(chuckle) . ..
MR. JENCKS: I'll go slow.
ALL: .. .(chuckle) . ..
MR. JENCKS: Mr. Chair, if! may. The question with regard to the aquifer, the aquifer that we're using
is the Kamaole Aquifer, which is approximately 90 square miles and it has a, it runs basically
from the top of Haleakala to Kanaloa Point in the Keanae area out to basic, basically Kealia Pond
in North Kihei. So it's, it's a very large triangle.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. JENCKS: The sustainable yield is, according to the Commission on Water Resource Management,
II million gallons a day, and the current take out of that aquifer is approximately 4 million
gallons a day and that, and most of that take, nearly all of that take is brackish water for
irrigation purposes in the coastal shelf.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And you know how many wells that--
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MR. JENCKS: I don't know the number of wells, but they're principally... there's a number, I think
there's eight wells in Wailea Resort in the golf course and there are wells in Makena Resort.
That's, those are the principal locations of the wells.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And those are all nonpotable?
MR. JENCKS: My understanding is they're all nonpotable wells used for golf course irrigation. There
was a question with regard to the contact with the Department, and what we have done is in the
development of the source development agreement as well as the, the ... defining the plans to
transfer water around to serve the project, we have worked with the Department of Water Supply
in crossing easements they have above Maui Meadows for pipeline locations, things like that. So
there has been contact, perhaps not with Mr. Tengan, but with the staff on locating those
easements and allowing the pipelines to go through their easements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In a March 8th correspondence you, you state that the project will
use two existing wells for irrigation and domestic water through initial increments of project
development. And also, the, the ... compliance report--gees, you're on your Twelfth Annual
Compliance Report to the State Land Use Commission--it, it states that the water is nonpotable.
So how do you intend to make this water usable for domestic purposes?
MR. JENCKS: Reverse osmosis treatment.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Reverse osmosis?
MR. JENCKS: There was a question--ifI may, Ms. Anderson--with regard to water quality testing. In a
letter that I sent to, through the Council Chair to Councilmember Kane, there was a question at
the last meeting with regard to water quality. The two wells that are on-site in, in 1991. . .I, as I
recall, tested less than 200 milligrams per liter each for chlorides; they were in about the 150
range, which is very good quality water. The most recent testing that was done I think this year
tested a little higher than that, but still below 200 milligrams per liter for both wells. So, so good
quality water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and so are you going to use one well for domestic purposes
or will you try to convert both wells through reverse osmosis?
MR. JENCKS: It depends upon the demand and, and you have to understand how these two wells that
exist today are part of a larger system off-site that we can use for either potable or nonpotable
use, we can go back and forth ... and it's resource.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So have, have either of those wells been tested for anything other
than chlorides, for any kind of contaminants?
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MR. JENCKS: The key that I was looking for was the chloride information and, and when I, I'd ask the
hydrologist about any other data, he couldn't find the data. But my recollection from what I've
read about the wells, they were very clean from the beginning and haven't changed at all.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I mean if they were initially intended for irrigation purposes,
they probably were never tested for contaminants.
MR. JENCKS: Are you thinking-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I mean just-MR. JENCKS: --are you thinking like, like heavy metals or anything like that?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, yeah, any kind of contaminant like, you know-MR. JENCKS: That testing would be done and is required as a protocol with the Clean Water Branch,
Department of Health, if you want to use it for potable purposes. So that would be done.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you'll be doing that testing before you proceed with any kind
of reverse osmosis development?
MR. JENCKS: To know what we have, exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. ... Wbat, what. .. what stage in the process are you now
with Department of Health? You, have you gone forward in any way with-MR. JENCKS: Yes, we have. We have-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --permitting?
MR. JENCKS: --we have received the permits for the additional wells and we're kind of waiting on, on
the direction from the Council here. Digging of wells, you know, this is a multi-million dollar
process, so we want to dig the wells in, in a timely manner. We have resource on-site and as
soon as we have some indication that Phase I is being approved, we'll, we'll issue the contracts
and dig the, the additional wells. But we are permitted for the additional wells.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So what, what is the timeframe for obtaining some test data?
MR. JENCKS: Once the wells are drilled, right away.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... (chuckle) . .. Right away you said?
MR. JENCKS: As soon as I dig the wells I can--or you mean on the existing wells or on the new wells?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The, the ones with Haleakala Ranch.
MR. JENCKS: As soon as those wells are dug, we'll do the testing right away.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're not going to dig 'em until you get your entitlement?
MR. JENCKS: Yeah, because of the investment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. JENCKS: I can tell, I can tell you that there is empirical data available on wells at the same
elevation farther north above the R&T Park in Kihei. Two wells were dug and I supervised the
drilling of one of those wells, and the, the water quality is equally as good as found in the project
area.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Equally as good?
MR. JENCKS: High quality.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: You mean the chloride level?
MR. JENCKS: Yes, equally as good ... and, and it didn't, there were no issues with heavy metals or
anything in that water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So do you have any data that supports your expectation for the
amount of water that you may be getting out of the ... I'm just going to call them the Haleakala
Ranch property wells?
MR. JENCKS: The ... the only, the only data I have is what exists today on the other wells that were
dug at the same elevation, and there's no question that the water's there and there's no question
based upon the, the casing size and the pump size that you couldn't get the, the water that we
need for the project. It's interesting that Mr. Tengan is saying approximately 2.2 million gallons
a day and our assumption has been 2.5 million gallons a day. So our estimates for water demand
are a little higher than his, but we believe that based upon the existing wells we have and the well
field that we have secured, we can easily provide that amount of water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Easily provide 2.5? And, and how much are you expecting? I
mean obviously Haleakala, Haleakala Ranch wants to get some water out of this.
MR. JENCKS: They are entitled to the excess water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what, what might that be? And I know this is just general
guessmg.
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MR. JENCKS: Right. Let's assume a million gallons a day out of the wells I have on-site, and let's
assume I dig two wells on Haleakala Ranch and those, those wells put forth a half million or let's
say three-quarters of a million gallons a day each based upon pump size. Whatever, whatever I
don't need in excess of what I need for the project they can use. So it, they could end up with a
couple hundred thousand gallons a day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The, the current irrigation wells, are they being pumped on a
regular basis?
MR. JENCKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For what purpose?
MR. JENCKS: For testing. We have, we have casing in place, we have motors in place, and we have
generators in place to make sure the wells are used so they don't freeze up so they're viable
and ... because it's an expensive asset and they are pumped on a monthly basis.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is there anything in any of these millions of pieces of paper
here that indicate the location of the Haleakala Ranch well sites?
MR. JENCKS: I believe in the letter that was transmitted to Councilmember Carroll--maybe, and
maybe I'm wrong--I, I thought that they had attached a graphic that showed the location of the
well sites from Haleakala Ranch.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You mean the letter from Haleakala Ranch?
MR. JENCKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There was no map.
MR. JENCKS: I don't know ifthere was an attachment to that or not. I don't recall.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No attachment.
MR. JENCKS: There isn't? Okay, I. . .it's easy to explain to you. All the wells that we, we have exist
today or will be dug, will be dug in the Kihei-Makena Community Plan District which is below
the 600-foot elevation, okay, above Central Kihei. There's a I,OOO-foot wide band that runs
parallel to that elevation from Maui Meadows towards the R&T Park, about three-quarters away
to the R&T Park, and that's our well field development area. So it's a very, it's a very narrow
band of land that follows that contour and that's the area within which we are limited in our
drilling.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're limited by what?
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MR. JENCKS: We're limited to a maximum use in the project of 1.5 million gallons a day from those
wells. That's the maximum I can take from Haleakala Ranch property.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, so that's why you're saying three-quarter, three-quarters of a
million each?
MR. JENCKS: It, it just depends on the casing size and the pump size.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so Haleakala Ranch is limiting you to 1.5 million?
MR. JENCKS: By agreement, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And but my question about why you were limited to that band
is ...that's what I was asking, why are you limited to that band?
MR. JENCKS: Well, I, I think it's, it's a function--if you're a landowner and, and, and you're
negotiation with someone on the rights to drill water, it's not good ranching policy to have things
all over the place. You want to confine this so you can--because they have an ongoing cattle
operation-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. JENCKS: --they want to expand their agriculture as well. So we agreed, we need to limit where
we're going to be drilling so that we don't, we don't foul up your programs and your pasturage
and create issues for your cattle operation. So that's why we defined it to a specific area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And do you know if Haleakala Ranch has any plans to use the
excess water for development purposes?
MR. JENCKS: In all discussions with the Ranch, this excess water would be used for agricultural
purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Agricultural purposes?
MR. JENCKS: They, and they have ... and as far as I know, they have no applications in process or
anything with the County.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. And, and so you're confident or... you're guaranteeing us
right now that it's within the Community Plan region of Kihei-Makena?
MR. JENCKS: What I can tell you is ... yeah, I can guarantee you that any well I dig will not be out of
the Kihei-Makena Community Plan.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: .. .(chuckle) . .. Okay, that's what we want to hear.
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MR. JENCKS: I will survey it and locate it with GPS if you want me to do that. .. . (chuckle) . ..
COUNC1LMEMBER ANDERSON: No, that's okay. But it would be nice if you could provide us a
map.
MR. JENCKS: I'll be happy to do that, not a problem.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, the map is attached to the March
that shows that field.

4th

or March 8th letter from Mr. Jencks

COUNC1LMEMBERANDERSON: March 8th letter?
MR. FOLEY: The March 8th letter from Wailea 670 Associates. It's about the tenth page in.
MR. JENCKS: Michael, was this a letter directly to Ms. Anderson?
MR. FOLEY: It was directed to Mr. Carroll-MR. JENCKS: Okay.
MR. FOLEY: --dated March 8, 2006 from you ... and the letter is attached as well as the, the permits
from the State-MR. JENCKS: I, I recall-MR. FOLEY: --the, the well permits.
MR. JENCKS: --recall a letter being sent.
MR. FOLEY: It's a topo map that-MR. JENCKS: Right.
MR. FOLEY: --has the field on it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Jencks, can you just describe a little about this reverse osmosis
process, what you've gotta do to develop it, what it's going to cost, how long it's going to take,
when you're going to determine whether. .. 1, I'm assuming that you're going to--it's not safe to
assume anything, but correct me if I'm wrong--that you're going to drill the, the two Haleakala
Ranch wells before you decide how much investment you need to put into reverse osmosis?
MR. JENCKS: It's all being done at the same time.
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: It is?
MR. JENCKS: Our assumptions are that certainly the wells that are on-site will not be enough to serve
the entire project based upon what we agree upon in terms of demand. We know that in the long
term since we have to create additional source, we'll have to go off-site, dig those wells. So
that's a timing issue, when do we do that. The cost to treat the water will be highly depended
upon the quality, but as I said, the quality right now is relatively high. In fact, you might
find ... you may want to not treat the water too much because if you get to a certain level in
cleanliness and cleaning up chlorides, it loses it's palatability. So we have to walk a real--yeah,
it, it gets too clean, people don't like the taste of it, apparently, talking to hydrologists. It's really
interesting. But the system, this is a multi-million dollar system that we would like to use and
use gravity to serve and, and process water if we can to save, save energy. But in any case, the
system will be located on-site within, within the project district area and will, will be a series of
filter systems that will maybe transfer and process, and, and per filter maybe a couple of hundred
thousand gallons per day needs to be located in a very small building. It's very common, it's
being done all over the State of Hawaii with water quality that's far, far worse than what we're
seeing here, yeah, in South MauL
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're saying that you're going to need 2.5 million gallons a
day, potable water?
MR. JENCKS: That's our estimate for all the water for the entire project, for everything-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And that's for 14-MR. JENCKS: --irrigation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, that's for everything?
MR. JENCKS: That's for everything.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Potable and nonpotable.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
needed for landscaping?

So ... that includes Mr. Tengan's estimate of 930,000 gallons

MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So-MR. JENCKS: He, he had 1.3 for domestic, as I recalL ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
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MR. JENCKS: ... and 900 and some change for irrigation.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: But you're saying it's 2.5, that's what your target is?
MR. JENCKS: That's right. That's what we-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's the combination of both?
MR. JENCKS: That's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I'm assuming that you're going to make all the water potable
so that you can--you're not?
MR. JENCKS: No. I'm only-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We want to know how much you're going to need for the potable,
for the 1,400 units?
MR. JENCKS: Okay. My assumption is very close to Mr. Tengan's with regard to the golf course
which is ... he's saying 900,000 and change, I'm saying 1 million gallons a day. Now the thing
to understand about that is that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that, that's just for the golf course?
MR. JENCKS: And that's nonpotable water for the golf course, nonpotable water for the golf course.
The thing to understand about that number is as the project develops and the treatment plant that
treats the wastewater is built and expanded, the water that's ... the nonpot..., the potable water
that's sent to the treatment plant from the homes will be treated and put on the golf course. So
that demand for that nonpotable will be reduced by using that reclaimed water. The potable
water is estimated right now to be about 1 Yz million gallons a day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and ...thank you for that, that's what I'm trying to get at.
What is that per unit?
MR. JENCKS: That's in excess of 1,000 gallons per day per unit, and the thing to remember about that
is--and you asked me am I going to treat all this water. No, I'm only going to treat what we can
reliably and functionally need to serve the homes in the project. I'm not going to treat any more
water than I need to for domestic purposes. So that will leave excess water, nonpotab Ie excess
water for irrigation on homes, irrigation of median strips. Plus as we get going and we have the
reclaim component, that will be added to that component. So, I'm only-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So-MR. JENCKS: --going to treat what I need to treat for domestic use.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So does that mean that you will be providing dual water lines
throughout the whole development?
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So each house ... even in, even, you know, not just the market, but
the affordable, they will have dual system, a dual line system?
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. JENCKS: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE·CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. In, in regards to the dual system, I would assume that one
of the pipes will be a gray line that probably come from your sewer treatment plant··
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
VICE·CHAIR PONTANILLA: ··the connection through the sewer treatment plant?
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
VICE·CHAIR PONTANILLA: In, in regards to .. .if you need to process the water that's in the well
today to, to provide potable water, according to this the processing plant would be within the
project area or··
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
VICE· CHAIR PONTANILLA: ··which is close to the wells?
MR. JENCKS: It would be at, at a, at a high elevation at approximately 600 foot, at the very top of the
project.
VICE·CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Jencks.
MR. JENCKS: Good afternoon.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just with, with regards to the total usage of water per day, this
includes the commercial component of your project-MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --as what you guesstimate? Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Jencks, good afternoon.
MR. JENCKS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The 2.5 mgd that you reference, yeah, that is, that is the total need for
the total build-out?
MR. JENCKS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So your total build-out is projected for a 20-year span. So if we were
to bring this home to get a better idea of your immediate water needs, it's not going to be 2.5, it's
going to be closer to what?
MR. JENCKS: Well, part of my proposal here is that we have right now two wells on-site that will do a
million gallons a day, and that water if you just use 1,000 gallons per DU you could build ...how
many DUs, 1,000 DUs. It could build affordable housing, it could serve market rate housing. So
we have the water today without going off-site to start the project and serve residential uses
today.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Uh-huh, okay. Would you still have a ballpark of what your, what your
daily consumption would be for say Phase I of the multiple phases that you're going to be doing?
MR. JENCKS: We've talked about the phasing in the project and I think, you know, part of the process
here is we have to--and, and there's been a lot of discussion in this very Chamber about Phase I,
Phase II, and Phase III over the last couple of days with other projects. We have to get through a
Phase I process here, then take this Phase I approval, put together a Phase II package which
includes all the final design, grading and drainage, and take that to the Planning Commission.
We're not going to do that. We're gonna, we're gonna do that Phase II for certain elements, for
example, the roadway system, the utility system and, and some housing up front, but this is going
to be multi-phase. So we're going to see multi-applications to the Planning Commission for
Phase II submittals over time, maybe six different submittals, six different phases. So if, and if
you say 6 and you divide that into 14, I don't know, you're talking maybe 300 units a phase, who
knows. Once again, I need to build ... my, my proposal is to build my affordable as I build my
market. So it's hard to say at this point in time, but I think it's safe to say that given the water we
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have on-site and the ability to process and treat, we have quite a bit of water for good, solid
residential uses upfront.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you. You've answered quite a few of my questions already,
but I'm just going through other things that we have, and you may have answered this
somewhere. But in regard to, I guess, it was a consultant for Wailea 670 back in 1993 before the
Maui Planning Commission, there was some comment made with regard to concern over septic
systems within Maui Meadows ... probably adversely impacting what your, I guess, plans were
for this area. Is that still a concern with regard to the septic or any leaching or any potential for
contamination?
MR. JENCKS: In, in .. .I believe it was my letter to you, Council Member, 1. .. or maybe I don't recall-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, it wasn't in the letter to me 'cause I didn't ask that question.
MR. JENCKS: That question came up in the context of questions I received at the last meeting on this
project, and I went back and looked at all the, all the articles, the newspaper articles and tried to
find that reference and I did find it, it was an off-the-cuff comment. And I will tell you that
whatever is in those wells, whatever the water quality is in those wells, the technology to treat
water.. .it, it's a non-issue. If, if, if by chance--and by the way, the wells that exist today on-site
are nearly, they're two-thirds way up in, in 670, very close to the top of Maui
Meadows ... so ... and, and the way cesspools work, it's gravity...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Dh-huh.
MR. JENCKS: ... and it's all rock in Maui Meadows. That's why they didn't do sewer. This is
not. .. we don't see it as an issue and if, if any, if there is an issue of any degree, the Department
of Health will identify it in the water testing and it will be dealt with as a part of the treatment
process. So we do not expect it to be an issue at all.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and I know that Councilmember Anderson has this in
her Committee basically because of the issues, I guess, resulting from Hamakuapoko Wells, that
we don't want to go and provide even potable water that. .. albeit it can be treated, particularly
when it's contaminated with D ... , DBCP or other pesticides. You don't want to have that going
to the public, and the public's been very strong about this. Because you're going to be--and I'm
looking at your well field--because this is over an agricultural area where you would be having, I
guess, the planned wells, if there is any contamination that would pose similar problems to what
we're having with regard to Hamakuapoko Wells, what is your position going to be if the public
says the same thing that they're saying to us out in Paia and in the Haiku area?
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MR. JENCKS: I guess my direct response would be there is absolutely no comparison between the well
sites that either exist on 670 or that we're proposing on Haleakala Ranch, there's no comparison
to those sites and Hamakuapoko. Hamakuapoko underlays existing, long-term pineapple, heavy
use of pesticides and that activity. Nothing even remotely related to that has happened in this
area ever.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and so there's been no agricultural fertilizers or anything
added to that area?
MR. JENCKS: Years ago one of the older uses on 670 apparently, and if you, if you, if you walk
through the site, there was a lot of, you know, and a large scale raking of the land and they grew
sweet potato, but this was, this was ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. JENCKS: ... you know, a hundred years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Before pesticides.
MR. JENCKS: Before pesticides.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. .(chuckle) . ..
MR. JENCKS: .. . (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Okay. And I know because, you know, in a place where I
used to live we had reverse osmosis, we also had gray water system, and also desalinization with
regard to our water. Our water was extremely expensive, though. So because we're looking at
affordable homes and every dollar that comes out of a person's pocket, it could be that a monthly
expense could bump them out as far as the qualifying income. What are your anticipated costs
for delivering this water and particularly as it relates to the affordable homes?
MR. JENCKS: That's a good point. It would be nice to be able to use County water for affordable
homes, but there is no County water available ... at least in the near term that we would like to
use. We did talk... and I, I think you, you ... the point you made with regard to cost is a good, is
a good one because a lot of it depends upon the size of the plant and how much water you're
providing. Based upon people who do this on a regular basis who develop systems and go
through the PUC--and by the way, this will be a PUC regulated process in this, in this
project. .. both potable and nonpotable--we're estimating the fee per 1,000 gallons to be
somewhere in the 3 Y, dollar range per 1,000 gallons. I said 3 to 4 in my letter to the
Council--it's somewhere in that range--3 to 4 per 1,000, that's, and that's based upon, you know,
a large quantity of water, a major system that serves a number of units.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and that, that is a real concern because I know even with
Kaanapali Water System I think, 1 don't know if they got their last rate increase with the PUC,
but 1 think they were at like 2.79 per thousand ...
MR. JENCKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... and, of course, the County is below that. Would your potable
water...1 guess that would be the more expensive of the two because of the tertiary treatment
and then your irrigation water would be hopefully less expensive?
MR. JENCKS: That's a very good, I'm glad you brought that up. There's two different systems
here--there's the potable system and the nonpotable system--and I said 1,000 gallons per DU. If
you look at the water records per DU and what's treated in a treatment plant for, for projection
purposes, it's about let's say 400 gallons per day, depends on whether it's a single-family home
or a multi-family home... so the, the ... and, and when you say 1,000 gallons a day like in Maui
Meadows, for example, a lot of that water is irrigation water.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MR. JENCKS: So they're paying a domestic rate for irrigation water. In this case they'll pay the
domestic rate for the potable water and they'll get a different rate for the nonpotable water. So
when you start looking at that relative cost and what they're paying, yeah, I think it'll work out,
it'll work out okay 'cause we can balance it off with the nonpotable rate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and with regard to also because you'll have your own sewage
treatment plant, is that correct. .. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ...because of water reuse through
the sewage system, are you going to be using injection wells or will you also be treating that
water to a tertiary level and then reusing it for further potable or I mean nonpotable water?
MR. JENCKS: Yes. The plan is to build the plant which will have a capacity somewhere around maybe
500,000 gallons a day or maybe a little bit less. In the plant you always need to have a backup
no matter where you build the plants, whether they're public or private. We probably will end up
with a, with an injection well because that's the easiest thing to do. The water, nevertheless, will
be treated to an R-l level and used for, for nonpotable purposes in the project for irrigation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and because I'm not in construction I don't know what the
costs are. I know that it's less expensive to put in your dual water lines at the beginning of a
project-MR. JENCKS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --than it is to do it at the end. But about what would the cost--and,
and I'm not talking about the bigger area, I'm talking like just sayan average home--what is
going to be your cost to include that kind of infrastructure with the dual lines? If you just said
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you didn't include it or you did include it, is it going to add significantly to the cost of your
infrastructure that would be added on to the cost of the home?
MR. JENCKS: How you ... the, the rate you set for wastewater treatment is also PUC regulated and it,
the rate you charge is really dependent upon how you capitalize the, the development of the
plant. In this case, the plant would be built upfront and in phases to accommodate the flow that
we create through build-out, the affordable and the market rate component and the commercial
component. The nonpotable water system is not part of that. The collection system and the
treatment system is what the people pay for. They pay, when they pay their irrigation bill or their
potable water bill, that's for a separate system, but the sewer fee will be for the delivery system
to the plant and the treatment of that water and disposable of it, disposal of it, that's what they
pay for, and that rate is not too far off from what you pay in Maui County today. In a letter I sent
in I, I projected that cost to be about $35 a month, give or take...which is not too far off what
people are paying in Maui County for a single-family home when you consider all the other fees
that are ti ed to that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and will you have .. .I know like when you hookup to
County water, for example, you have your meter-MR. JENCKS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --fee that's paid usually as a part of the development. Will that also
be included or is this just going to be a monthly fee?
MR. JENCKS: There will be a meter fee. Every lot will have a meter-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. JENCKS: --whether it's multi-family, single-family and we'll have, we'll have people reading the
meters and doing the billing.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So but that would be a meter fee paid upfront when you get
the meter installed on your unit?
MR. JENCKS: Just like in Maui County when you, when you want to build a house, you have to go
down and buy a water meter-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Buy a water meter.
MR. JENCKS: --you pay a meter fee and ... you pay the fee.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And I know that our meter fees are grossly undervalued .
. . . (chuckle) . ..
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MR. JENCKS: Water is a very inexpensive entity.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and so would you have an idea of what that meter fee
might be?
MR. JENCKS: At this point it's hard to say, it's hard to say.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And because my concern is always that the people that are
living in the affordable homes struggle just to even qualify for the affordable homes. They can't
budget, they can't go get mortgages unless they know approximately what they're going to be
looking at. So, I guess my, my question would be would you consider or have you considered
subsidizing through the market-priced homes through a tiered system of either sewage or water
fees? Have you considered having a structured system where the market-priced homes would
help assist those individuals that are living in the affordable units to make it more, I guess,
affordable to them?
MR. JENCKS: Well, I think there's another way of looking at this, and if you look at the marketplace
today, it's a good, it's a good lesson. As the Federal Reserve increases interest rates, the price of
money, the cost of money increases everyday. A dollar today is worth more than a dollar
tomorrow. For me to be competitive and build affordable housing at 100 percent or 120 percent,
I've gotta make sure that if I want to sell and I want to sell that home to someone, 'cause it's
highly subsidized by the developer to get it built and get it sold, I need to make sure that I build
that house respect, respecting the interest rate increases that we'll see in the near future and the
cost of material. So, I guess what I'm telling you is that house that I deliver to that person, it's
gotta be one that he can afford, including these kinds of things. So, I've gotta kind of work
backwards. So that's, I mean that's how the market responds to that issue. We have to build a
house, we have to sell 'em to these people, okay, and we've gotta price it, we've gotta somehow
figure out a way, whether it's interest rates going up or this kind of constraint in terms of income
limitations, to make it work for these buyers.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. JENCKS: So that's how we're going to deal with the issue.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, so in essence what you're saying, if I'm reading between the
lines, you are going to be through your market -priced housing structure going to have to find
some happy medium so that the individuals that would be going into those homes will be able to
manage financially?
MR. JENCKS: Someone pays for the subsidy.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. JENCKS: Someone pays.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And I, I guess I had one final question, well, actually two.
One is with regard to the golf course. Because the golf course water that is going to be, is tbat
part ofthe estimate, estimate of what your use is going to be?
MR. JENCKS: Yeah. We, we were talking about that a few minutes ago and we had 2.2 million gallons
and change. We're, we're looking at 2.5 million gallons to be safe, a million gallons of that is
golf course irrigation water.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, 1 million gallons. And then that would be coming from
your.. .I guess ...would it be coming from the two wells that you're currently-MR. JENCKS: Or, or maybe a combination of on-site and off-site, either way.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and the only reason I'm asking this is because when you
do golf course overspray, and I know that we have some of that in, in our area, too, there has
been concern expressed that some of the overspray, because not all the contaminants are taken
out of the water, it, it leaves marks on cars and every other thing. But I'm not as concerned
about that as when water is actually, I guess, airborne ...
MR. JENCKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. .it vaporizes and whatever contaminants are in that water we
experienced at our condominium several cases of cancer for the people that were close to the golf
course. Now, I cannot, you know, say whether or not this was just coincidence or what, but the
issue was raised at, I guess, several different forums about when water is airborne and when
you're doing your aeration particularly of golf courses, it, the overspray is huge. What assurance
do the individuals having, you know, that will live in close proximity to the golf course, what
assurance do they have that water will be of a quality that it would not impair their health or not
create other problems for them health-wise?
MR. JENCKS: There's a couple of layers in there. First layer, of course, is before I can even use this
water I have to get, I have to get approval by the Commission on Water Resource Management;
Clean Water Branch, Department of Health. That's the first protocol. And, and just to address
the Kaanapali issue ...urn ... the difference between these two projects and the process of using
this reclaimed or nonpotable water is that we're designing a project that incorporates this system.
We're not overlaying it on top of an existing project. And there are, not only in addition to the
DOH protocols, but also the Golf Course, Integrated Golf Course Management Plan--that is
required by the Department of Health to include adequate safeguards in terms of quality and
procedures for spray to address exactly what you're talking about. So there's a nurnber of filters,
if you will, through which we have to pass to create a plan that's acceptable to these entities. So,
I don't think there's any question that we can satisfy all its requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay, as long as there's some assurance that that is-- 51 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 21, 2006

MR. JENCKS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --included. And my final question, and this is, you know, one of the
requirements under Change of Zoning. It says the application, if granted, would not adversely,
and it has a bunch of things, but it would not adversely affect water systems, you know, in the
area. So because I'm not a water specialist and because this is coming out of Kamaole Aquifer-MR. JENCKS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --is there a guarantee, and whether there's a bond that's required or
whatever, is there a guarantee that nothing that would be done in your development would
adversely impact either the aquifer or the operation of water systems that are in that area?
MR. JENCKS: That's ...we will not be able to get permits to drill and use the water we want to use
without control of that by the State Commission on Water Resource Management. So that's
where the, that's where the protocol lies and that's what they do. They look out for that issue.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And if they do as good a job on that as they do on other
things, I have serious concerns ... . (chuckle) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Jencks.
MR. JENCKS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Are you prepared to provide some comment as to whether or not the
County at some point in the future will have obligations regarding your water, your private water
system? In other words, will it eventually become a public system?
MR. JENCKS: Only if you want it to.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Has there been discussion with respects to that?
MR. JENCKS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Do you folks anticipate or do you see it in the best interest of, of. .. who
you represent in developing this project as one way or the other? Do you folks see it as a benefit
to keep it private or do you see it as a benefit eventually making it a public?
MR. JENCKS: A couple of things. We have said from the very beginning that if it's a private system,
we need to be prepared to design and build a system that takes care of itself and is a first-class
system built to County standards. Second element of that is the Planning Commission accepted
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the idea of a private system, but also included in the condition that if and when County water
was available, maybe we could use that. Our position, however, is if we build a private system,
that should be there forever to serve those people that live there and should be built of a quality
that remains in that, that situation. So we don't anticipate giving it to the County. We're going
to build it to keep it as a private system forever.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, because we're in the area of water, that same question will be
asked regarding the sewer component. So whether it's appropriate now to get it out of the way
as a brief comment or if you want to wait, either way, I, I will be asking that question. So-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I don't know if you have a response ... same with the, with the sewer
system since it's a private system.
MR. JENCKS: It's the same thing. There's a little ... catch here, however. If you look at the Conditions
of Zoning for Project District 9 that exists today on the books for the golf courses, there's a
requirement that the project, when the Central or Central Kihei system expands southward
towards Wailea and there's an opportunity to hookup, that the project hookup; and we fully agree
with that and think that's a good idea, as well as if reclaimed water comes south far enough from
the Kihei plant to use on the golf course, that we would use that water as well. So we're, we're
fully prepared to do both of those, hookup, and use that water when it's available.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Final question, Chair. How deep are the existing wells and the two new
wells that you folks intend to drill for the water...
MR. JENCKS: Urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... depth of the, of the holes?
MR. JENCKS: I think the, the existing wells are 20 feet below sea level on project and the wells that, of
course, that we haven't dug yet in the, in the source area, it probably be about the same. I know
that the wells that are right above the R&T Park are approximately 50 feet below sea level is
what I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Just for some clarification, Mr. Jencks. In, in
the discussion I heard you have with Ms. Johnson... um .. .I thought I heard you say that the per
unit use would be 1,000 gallons a day. Though, what I'm trying to get to is when I previously
asked you about a unit, per unit use, she said 1,000 gallons a day, and that is for the potable use?
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MR. JENCKS: That was a...what I said was 1,000 gallons a day per DU times 1,400 is 1.-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What's a DU?
MR. JENCKS: Dwelling unit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh.
MR. JENCKS: It's 1.4 million gallons a day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What-MR. JENCKS: But, but--oh, I'm sorry, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Go ahead. I want the unit amount.
MR. JENCKS: And, and what I said to Councilmember Johnson was that the actual potable use in a
dwelling is somewhere around 400 gallons a day per DU. So the difference, that 600 gallons, is
water they typically use for irrigation, like in Maui Meadows.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Well, that's, that's the problem, Mr. Jencks, because in all
of our records for water use in the Makena, Wailea area--it's in our Water Use and Development
Plan--this is the total use, it's not broken down by potable and nonpotable ...
MR. JENCKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... but the estimated use is 2,500 gallons a day, not 1,000 gallons a
day. Wc're talking about high-end housing, lots of water use, lots of bathrooms, lots of
landscaping. So how you gonna get by with less than half that? Now, I could see it on the
affordable component, but not for the 1,000 market price, the 1,000 market-priced houses if
they're going to have, if they're going to be, you know, in any close proximity to the current
houses that are in Wailea and Makena.
MR. JENCKS: Well, there's, there's a couple of responses to that. Number one, this project does not,
we don't have an affordable component and a whole bunch oflarge lot market-rate homes. The
project is comprised of attached product and single-family product, okay, which can be a variety
of different--you know, it can be apartments, they can be duplexes, town homes, and
single-family. And I think if you... and, and the goal and I think if you read through the material
we've provided to you in the past, we've been clear that this project is not intended to be Wailea
Resort. That's not what we're trying to build here. We're not building lots that people can then
landscape however they wish. We're trying to be judicious in the use of water. We want to make
sure that people use water properly. We've emphasized the use of, use of a dry xeriscaping,
native plants. So our proposal is a, is a complex proposal that incorporates a limited amount of
water from people to use and not just will-nilly using domestic water for irrigation purposes.
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That's why we've got a potable and a nonpotable system. So you're right, in some areas of
South Maui people lose ... use the water a lot, a lot of water everyday for their, their grass, their
what. .. what they have, what have you-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Tropical landscaping.
MR. JENCKS: --tropical landscaping. That's not what we're intending here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're not going to allow tropical landscaping?
MR. JENCKS: I'm-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: You mean the-MR. JENCKS: I just want-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --CC&Rs?
MR. JENCKS: Yeah. And the landscape pallet that matches the amount ofwater--we've got a limited
amount ofwater--we've got to match that with the, with the design of this project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you're going to limit market-priced houses to 400 gallons a
day potable use?
MR. JENCKS: No. No, I'm not going to do that. I'm, I'm saying the estimate for... the estimate of
potable use, the estimate of potable use in a single-family dwelling is about 400 gallons a day.
Now they may use water, more water than that and I have to be able to supply what they need.
But even if! go 1,000 gallons a day for domestic use, not irrigation, I still got plenty of water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I hope you're right because, you know, in all the
description of this project. .. and, and I'm not. .. when I say this project, I'm talking about the,
the 1,000 homes, 1,000 whatever dwelling, DUs you're going to do. In all the documentation
from the State Land Use Commission... um ... all the way through, there has been comments that
these are going to be ... your target market are second and third home buyers, and these people
are not accustomed to limiting their water consumption. And if you're going to pay, you know,
upwards of over a million, you know, a million dollars plus for a lot and a house, whatever it
might be, you're going to want to have plenty of water for a swimming pool, for the friends that
come and visit. So, I hope you're right that you think each one of these dwelling units are only
going to use 400 gallons a day. I'd like to see some stats on that because all the statistics we
have in this Department, this, the County's Water Department says that the homes--and it doesn't
necessarily mean single-family homes; it could mean condominiums, too--that the average use
per household in the Wailea, Makena area is 2,500 gallons a day, and it does not break it down to
how much goes to landscaping and how much goes to potable. So, I can't pin you in on that but,
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you know, I mean if 2,500 is, is the average use, I would find it hard to believe that of that 2,500
only 400 is domestic. But if you have some statistics to support your estimate, I'd love to see it.
MR. JENCKS: You could ask the Wastewater Department, Wastewater Division of Public Works what
they use as a projection for domestic flow for a dwelling unit, and they will tell you that the
number's around 400 gallons per day for a single-family or a multi-family unit. I mean that, it's
what they use everyday for projecting flows.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: I see.
MR. JENCKS: Ask 'em because that might be helpful.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's, and that is specific to the Wailea, Makena area?
MR. JENCKS: Countywide. It's a-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, see, the thing is is you've got a different animal down there
than you have countywide. People in Kahului, Wailuku use 600 gallons a day total. People in
Wailea, Makena use 2,500. So we're talking apples and oranges.
MR. JENCKS: Okay. Well, we're actually talking domestic flow, not irrigation water, and, and what
I'm trying to point out to you is, is it's a fairly simple calculation to understand how you size a
wastewater treatment facility, and if you talk to the Department of Public Works, they can give
you a good number as to what a, a single-family or a multi-family unit is using on a daily basis
even in South Maui. They might be give it, be able to give it to you in South Maui specifically.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We'll look into that. That would be a good way to break it down.
Thank you. And, and since you did just mention-CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, excuse me. Ms. Anderson, I'd like to stop for a few minutes because our
Water Director has to leave at 4:30. So if you could hold your questions for, the remaining
questions for Mr. Jencks while we see if any of the Members have questions for our Water
Director-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Certainly.
CHAIR CARROLL: --before he has to leave. Thank you. Anyone have questions for our Water
Director who has to leave shortly? Ms. And ... , Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is just real quick because Mr. Jencks had mentioned, George,
about the possibility or potential later on of having to take over the water system, because I know
we've had this occur before in, in other situations. So do you have any comments specifically
with regard to the County assuming responsibility for any water system, you know, that would be
in this project?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, except for, except for the desalinization plant, you know, Mr. Jencks
mentioned that everything would or the water systems would be built to County standards. If
that's done, then we wouldn't have any concerns, assuming that we would want to at some point
in time take over their water system... as long as it's done in ...with, with County standards.
And at the time of turnover to the County, if it should happen, if it passes certain tests ... Iike we
would probably run pressure tests throughout the systems to see whether the pipe, pipelines are
holding up, you know. Assuming everything works well, works out well, then the, the County
could probably accept the system for operation and maintenance.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Now what would happen, George, if for some reason there
would be something that wasn't done appropriately or maybe the system needed to be upgraded?
'Cause I know a lot of times you get caught where the Federal standards change. What would
happen in that sit. .. , situation?
MR. TENGAN: Then probably the Department would not recommend take over of the system,
acceptance of the system.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, you know, then if that were the case--'cause I know we
had another water system that we did take over and it, and it did cost us quite a bit of money to
do that--you would not anticipate, though, that we would be stuck with the water system having
to make those improvements and then... you know, have to take it over at some point in the
future?
MR. TENGAN: Not as long as they're operating and owning the system as a private water system, then
the County would have no obligations-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: --to, to take over the system should something go wrong.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, George.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for--Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Just a quick question. In, in a particular subdivision
where ohana units can be built, let's say a brand new subdivision, how do you do your
requirements as far as per unit. .. the number of gallons per day?
MR. TENGAN: You mean to estimate how much-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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MR. TENGAN: --water would be required, let's stay it's still in the planning stage?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Like say you have a 50-lot subdivision ...
MR. TENGAN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... based on the square footage an ohana can be built. ..
MR. TENGAN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...what would be the projection for the, a particular lot as far as water
usage?
MR. TENGAN: We probably would go back and look at some of our records where ... you know, an
area is allowed ohana construction, similar to Kahului. Let's say if we're going to do one in, in
Wailuku and we need the, needed to do an estimate, we could do, you know, take an area of
Kahului and, and do an estimate or by our engineering standards we just go by the number of
units or the acreage involved and do, do an estimate on that basis.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Have you gone back and, and like say you did an estimate on a 50-lot
subdivision, based on the 50 lots come up with an estimate and, and through the years people
build ohanas and see the increase in water usage in that particular area, and, and, you know, on
the average what would be the--I don't know if you have this data--let's say after five years as far
as the water usage for that one particular subdivision... the increase or decrease, if any?
MR. TENGAN: Yeah. My comment to tbat is, you know, that's where maybe our water system
development fee can be strengthened up. When we look at a lot or, or a residential lot, we're
looking basically at a 5/S th -inch meter, and when we do our estimate, you know, we may estimate
that the property would be using only 600 gallons a day. However, because of the, the way the
property is used and because of the... what. .. because of the property owner's own desires, like
he may want a nicely landscaped yard with a lot of vegetation, that, that usage could end up to be
1,000 gallons per day. But, you know, the, the meter fee is based upon that 600 gallons a day.
So actually then the property owner is getting away with 400 gallons a day without paying for
the infrastructure to support the usage.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So there is a difference ifthere is a count-MR. TENGAN: There could be a difference, right.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. If there's a covenant in regards to no ohanas ... and... versus, you
know, a regular subdivision where ohanas can be built in regards to the gallons per day, is there a
difference? There should be a difference, big difference.
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MR. TENGAN: Well, we, we basically go by the...when we're looking at approving or signing off on
a building permit, we'll look at whether the fixture count in that building permit can be
handled ... by the size of the meter they have. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for our Director? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Jencks said that they're going to be using, I guess, reverse
osmosIs. Is that the process that the County uses right now with treating our water?
MR. TENGAN: No, that's still out in the future for the County. We are pursuing other alternatives as
far developing water resources. Reverse osmosis is the same as desalinization. The process is
the same. So Mr. Jencks and his organization is one step beyond what we're doing right now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So at this point in time the County, you know, if this were a system
that eventually had to be taken over, we, we ... at this point in time if we didn't have that kind of
expertise, we could not take over that kind of system? Is that correct?
MR. TENGAN: I would say that we could take over that kind of system. We do have staff on-hand that
are dealing with the, the microfiltration plants, and that's one step lower than the reverse
osmoSIs. So, it wouldn't take much to get them .. .let's say upgraded to that higher level of
filtration.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, George.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for our Director before I release him? Hearing none, thank
you, Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Now we'll go back to Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Jencks, I heard you say that for the--and,
and, and just to reiterate, I hope you can tighten up your estimate more for us on that 400 gallons
a day for potable use, I mean what you're basing that estimate on. And if you're basing it on-MR. JENCKS: Be happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --yeah, if you're basing it on the standard that goes through, that
goes to the sewage treatment plant, then I think it needs to be a tighter estimate than that. You
mentioned that in some of--as Ms. Johnson was asking you about your sewage treatment plant,
you mentioned that there would be injection wells as well as recycled ... a tertiary plant or
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whatever. Have you cleared that with the Department of Health? It's my understanding that
injection wells, especially in that area, are not permitted anymore.
MR. JENCKS: Well, the project is for the most part below the UIC injection lines. So just like in
Central Kihei we can use an injection well. We would anticipate one well. It's a function of how
much capacity you need as backup. But the, of course, the desire is to treat, tank, and then use
for irrigation. .. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... should not be a problem. Actually, we did meet
with the State Department of Health ... Wastewater Branch and we talked about the proposal, and
they're fully onboard. They understand what we're doing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So your primary use for that is for backup?
MR. JENCKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. JENCKS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Then, I also heard you say that you would be coming to the
Planning Commission for--and I don't want to confuse what I'm trying to get at by...with
semantics, so I'm going to try to find a different word here. You, you're going to be developing
your project in segments.
MR. JENCKS: In phases.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I don't want to use phase because that's, that's a word I want
to use for something else.
MR. JENCKS: Okay, use segments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thanks. Okay. So you're going to be developing your
project in segments and as each segment comes forward, you said that you're going to go to the
Planning Commission to get Phase II approval.
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: According to the County Code, Phase II approval is for the entire
project district development, and so 1'd like to know on what basis--and every project district
that r have seen in my seven years with the Council. .. and, and in fact the Phase II approval that
you got for the 402 acres back in 1993 was addressing the whole Project District Phase I
approval.
MR. JENCKS: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So on what basis are you making that determination? Has
someone in Planning indicated to you that you can come in for each segment of the project to get
Phase II approval?
MR. JENCKS: The ... this is a large project and it's a multi-segment project-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: I understand.
MR. JENCKS: --over an extended period of time. As I understand it today in processing Phase II
applications, they are being submitted. They have a Phase I approval and they are taking the
Phase I applications incrementally on, on larger projects, and that was something we would like
to do. Ifwe-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Wait a minute, excuse me. They're taking the Phase I approvals in
increments?
MR. JENCKS: They're, they are allowing Phase II applications for, for a-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Phase II.
MR. JENCKS: --segment of a-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Phase I.
MR. JENCKS: --larger project district approval. Ifwe have to do it in one submittal, that's fine with us.
That doesn't change the fact, however, that the project will not, will be built in segments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. JENCKS: Either way it's still built in segments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, because ... and I want to just put this on the record,
Mr. Chair. "Phase II approval shall be processed as follows: Unless otherwise provided in the
project district ordinance, after Phase I approval the applicant shall submit to the planning
director a preliminary site plan for the project district development. The preliminary site plan
shall conform to the project district ordinance and shall include the following:", and then it goes
on with the various requirements. So, I would like to know why the Planning Department is
allowing incremental Phase II approvals for a larger Proj ect District Ordinance that does not
comport with our County Code?
CHAIR CARROLL: As it relates to water?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, just as it relates to the whole project in its total.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, hold that question for right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(chuckle) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: We would like to finish up with the water first-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --and then we'll go to Planning. Any further questions on water? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Same question like I asked the Water Department.
In, in the development itself will ohanas be allowed? And, and the reason why I ask this
question is if your estimate is so many hundred gallons per day, was it based on a single unit or a
unit with probably an ohana on 'em?
MR. JENCKS: The direct--Mr. Chair, if I may--the direct answer is it's, it's 1,400 units that we're
asking for in this approval and that includes any ohanas. So my preference is not to allow
ohanas in the project. It's one DU per lot, unless you're of course building attached product,
which is a different scenario. I, I don't. . .I think it's very difficult to plan parks, roads, water,
sewer with ohanas 'cause you never know what, what you're going to need or get in the future,
and there are plenty of examples on Maui right now. So this project is based upon 1,400 units,
period, and, and the policy that I would prefer in this Project District Zoning is to discourage or
not allow ohana units.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for water? Ms. Ander. .. , oh, thank you, Ms. Anderson. I'd
like to show for the record that we've had to excuse some Members. Ms. Anderson is leaving
now, Mr. Hokarna has left, and Ms. Tavares is excused. We have Members with us ... at this
moment: Councilrnember Johnson, Kane, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, and Carroll; and we will
continue as long as we have a quorum. Alright, no more questions for water? If not, thank you
very much, Mr. Jencks-MR. JENCKS: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: --you may sit down. The next one we'd Iike--it's 4:30, usually we take a break at
4:30. Any... how about a.. .let's try to keep it to ten minutes, a real ten minutes. We'll stand in
recess for ten minutes .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

4:33 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:46 p.m.
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CHAIR CARROLL: .. . {gavel} . .. This Land Use Committee meeting of June 21, 2006 is now back in
session. Members, I was going to hear Parks, but I do not see ... Mr. Matsui has not arrived yet.
Is Mr. Miyamoto still here? ...Alright, what we're going to do then is go .. .is .. .I do not see
housing here--alright, Planning Department, since we have Planning Department very faithfully
waiting over here. We're going to begin with Planning. Like I said, I did want to do Parks while
Ms. Johnson was here, but since we do not have them. Mr. Yoshida, or who is going
to ... anybody want to make an opening stating, statement? If not, I'm going to open the floor to
questions to Parks.
MR. FOLEY: Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, Planning .... {chuckle} . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Members.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Planning.
CHAIR CARROLL: I mean, excuse me-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Planning.
CHAIR CARROLL: --it's been a long, short day already.
ALL: ... {chuckle} . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: That any--Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, and, and this is probably going to be a question that's
going to become a standard when any of these projects come before us now... because we're
looking--and, and I know you're working on the General Plan advisory overview and all of the
key components. What. . .in the South Maui region what is currently permitted? How many
units are we looking at? Do you have a ballpark figure of what we're looking at for things that
have already been approved, number of units and number of affordables?
MR. FOLEY: Ms. Johnson, we have that information, but I don't have it with me at my fingertips. We
can provide it for your next meeting and have the map ... and an, and an updated list of projects
in different categories. But I, I don't have it today.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That, that would be something that I would want. And
because Ms. Anderson is gone, I'll just ask the question again ...the ... and, Members, correct me
if I'm asking this improperly. I believe her question was with regard to the segmentation of the
Phase II development. She seemed to believe that it was a deviation and a departure from what
was already in the County Code. So you could, could you address that question that she asked of
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what is there that permits Planning or ordinance-wise, what is there that would enable you to do
that?
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, in response to Ms. Johnson's question, on very large projects the
Department has typically for years reviewed Phase II applications in segments or phases. For
instance, Manele Bay residential was considered separate from the golf course, which was
separate from the hotel, and the same thing is true in one, one of the large Kihei projects. And so
we have traditionally reviewed those projects in that manner and we don't see anything in the
Code that, that prohibits that interpretation, but it has been standard practice for years and years.
And I think the reason for that is that the Phase II approval for project districts is quite detailed
and includes site plans. And so for a very large project like Wailea 670, they would have to do
very detailed site plan work for the entire 1,400 units, even though they plan to build it out over a
20-year period. And we routinely have a... a deadline for starting the project and a deadline for
finishing the project, but if we did the whole project in Phase II at once, it would be a 20-year
gap. And so I, I think there are very logical reasons for reviewing the, the projects, the proj ... ,
the large project districts in, in phases.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And would it. .. because of, I guess, some recent concerns
that have arisen, would it be best to write into the County Code through ordinance some
mechanism that would specify that that is .. .instead ofJeaving it open? I don't know if there is
currently anything in there, but I, I would, I would just ask for your comment.
MR. FOLEY: .. .1, I would have to read it more, in more detail, but I, I don't see any harm in, in adding
that specificity in this section so that it was obviously permissible to, to do it in that manner. I,
1. .. we'd have to look at, at the wording much more carefully to figure out how to do that and,
and figure out whether or not it's already... permitted, but I, I don't see any reason why we
shouldn't make it more explicit.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I think, you know, from what I can gather from the
concerns that have been expressed by the community, too, is that in the Phase II approval, that's
the engagement, there's a public process still in place for that, and over time I think what's
happening is people ... they become disengaged because there's this passage of time. So if
there's a legal requirement, if you have that, I think it would be better to codify, in my own
opinion, so that the public knows what to expect, what the notification procedures are and
that. . .if it's a Phase II, that it doesn't automatically include, I guess, the whole project, and that
each component or each segment of that would have the laws applicable at that point in time so
that you're not leaving, you know, this hanging out there somewhere in the air an unanswered
question about what rules or laws or granting applies at what point in time. So if you could look
at that and then, you know, comment back. It's not just for this project, but I think it's overall to
try to .. .I don't know, I guess respond to some of the concerns that are being raised.
MR. FOLEY: Well, I should clarify that for years we've had deadlines for starting the project and if
they don't start within that period, they have to either come back for an extension or the Phase II
approval expires. The problem is that that didn't exist 16 years ago, but it has existed for the last
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several years and I don't know when, when the County started doing that, but we don't have that
problem anymore. We just, we had that problem many years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. FOLEY: But we, we now have a start date and a finish date attached to Phase II approvals.
So ... but, but there's, like I say there's no harm in, in stating in the ordinance that, that
that ... that's the procedure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Chair. In the same line as the previous Member
had spoken. You know, I, I agree with the, with the Member in regards to ...we need to add
something in the ordinance so that if Phase, once Phase II is approved, you know--because of
what happened previously--and if they do it in segments like was indicated, then at least we give
the public a chance to review and, and we would get more up to dated, updated information in
regards to the, the progress of the project. And this will, you know, help out the public as well as
the Department in ensuring that the Phase II approvals are done in a manner that, you know, is
efficient as well as, you know, protecting the public.
MR. FOLEY: I just wanted to add that there are two basic reasons for having these deadlines to start the
project and to finish the project or the segment, and one is because ...regulations change
periodically and you don't want a project being built many years later under antiquated
standards. The second reason is that circumstances also change. For instance, there might be
significantly more traffic than was originally anticipated when the project was reviewed many
years ago, and so you might need to modify the, the street network in that Phase II approval. So
there are good reasons both from the government standpoint and from the applicant's standpoint.
They also might want to change the, the product that is being proposed. They, they sometimes
have a, you know, for instance a single-family subdivision proposed initially and then come back
with Phase II and want to change it to a, you know, attached housing units to, to cluster density
or, or whatever. So there, there are a lot ofreasons why you need the, the Phase II approvals to
be in segments.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Oh, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane, I made an error. I was supposed to call on Mr. Molina first. If you
would-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, no problem. I have no problem. Yeah, I yield.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina, and then Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, no problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --Mr. Chairman. Mr. Foley, can you comment on the buffer zones that
would be created by the project, you know, between the existing communities and the roadways?
This, this basically meets smart growth principles?
MR. FOLEY: I. ..Mr. Molina, I prefer, I presume that you're referring to the conceptual land use plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. FOLEY: The one I'm looking at has most of the buffer between eXlstmg and proposed
development consists of the golf course. There's one area over on, on the north edge of the
property that's, that's, you know, shown as landscaping... but ... and, and it looks like a
pedestrian path, but the rest of it looks like it's golf course. The, the letter to Mr. Carroll dated
April 6th , refers to 116-foot buffer zone between the project and Maui Meadows, including a
50-foot wide landscape buffer. That's different than the one I was referring to along the western
edge of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I guess that, the landscaping will be maintained by the, by the
community I would presume, yeah?
MR. FOLEY: Yeah, the drawing indicates that the, the landscaping would probably be the responsibility
of the homeowner's association. The conceptual land use plan does show the 50-foot landscape
buffer along this, between this project and Maui Meadows.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Back to this whole Phase II approval component.
Mr. Foley, do you have administrative rules to support your comments regarding why we should
be looking at it or accepting your comments regarding segmentation? Do you have anything in
writing that helps to, T guess, protect the developer as well as the public from discretionary
authority? And it's not on, it's not on you personally, I'm just saying as a Director in the
decisions that you make and because of the justifications that you've made based on the Code
that everybody relies on to conduct themselves with County business, do you have what you
stated validated with administrative rules?
MR. FOLEY: At this time Clayton and I are not aware of any, no.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Because I, I ask that question because if it's not you, as an
individual, sitting in that position and we have a different Director, then we have a developer
who is relying on what we have in the Code to protect from changes of opinions from director to
director to director. So, I say that because ... and I will also note that Mr. Jencks in his response
to Member John ... , Member Anderson stated that if it comes down to where they need to submit
something for the Phase II approval, that they would do it in one complete application. And I
cite that because in 19.45.050, Section B, No.1, "Phase II approval shall be processed follows:",
and I know Member Anderson read this in, but I'm going to read it again. It reads, "Unless
otherwise provided in the project district ordinance, after Phase I approval the applicant shall
submit to the planning director a preliminary site plan ... ", singular. Now the reason I make that
distinction is because later it talks about. .. "The preliminary site plan shall conform to the
project district ordinance and shall include the following:", and then it goes into proposals, "s",
plural, for drainage, streets, parking; proposals, plural, for recreational community facilities;
proposals, et cetera. The writers of what became this codification or this section were very clear
on using singUlar terms as well as plural terms. And so with that being said, help us understand
how you arrived at an interpretation that segmentation is an acceptable practice, or are you
following that practice based on historical practice and have agreed with that practice and made
the determination that it's the right thing, not a practice thing?
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, in response to Mr. Kane's question, it was the practice when I entered
County employ and we ... are just continuing that, that practice and, and feel that it's appropriate,
but we will prepare either a Code amendment or, or administrative rules, or both, depending on
our advice from Corp. Counsel to, to clarify the, the procedure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Brief comment. It protects the public with
consistent application of law, bottom line. It protects the public, including a developer, any
developer, any person who participates in the processes of government with the application being
consistent. The more discretionary authority that is applied in County govermnent and the
processes, the more people get disgruntled, frustrated, pissed off, everything else under the sun
that's not a good word. So, I think the point needs to be reiterated. So, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair concurs. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Members, we have the Parks with us
now, Mr. Matsui, if you could please come down. r would like to address parks while we still
have our Parks Director here. r am sorry for the delay. I had assumed that the Parks would be in
the building, and they weren't. We're going to open up the questions to Parks with Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Pat, and basically can you give your comments with regard to
the park plans and also the contributions in satisfaction of the requirements of the Parks
Department and any additional, I guess, contributions over and above that, in your opinion, with
regard to the proj ect?
MR. MATSUI: I think you have our letter. . June '06, and basically it says that in lieu of the Little
League Field we'll take cash and we would also take cash for the parks contribution.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I know we had this conversation the other day in Committee,
but I do not believe that you were there. One of the--and I was just reading from the community
plan. Basically, one of the concerns that we're having is that because right now there's a lot of
emphasis on the regional park and large facilities and developing large facilities I believe both in
South and West Maui, one of the concerns is that we're embarking on a policy that is really
slightly different from I guess a, a mix, you know, where you have some pocket parks, you have
some land, you have some cash, you know, and all of the emphasis is going into the one area
which is ball fields and, you know, the regional park development and this type of thing. And I
just want to square that because one of the things that we basically look at in recreation in the
Kihei Community Plan, it says provide for a range of park sizes and types at neighborhood
community and regional scales. New residential development shall provide rec. facilities on-site
to meet the immediate needs of project residents. And... so I, I just want to see how that--and,
and also there's another implementing action, too. It says, we did revise the standards in the Park
Dedication Ordinance, but strategies which should be explored include increasing park
assessment provisions, various cash versus land dedication options, provision of active versus
passive rec. parks. The analysis should recognize the importance of on-site rec. facilities as well
as the need for parks at the neighborhood community and regional level. And within the
proposal I believe that the developers made, there was quite a bit of community support for that.
So now because you're saying that you, you want the money, I want you to be able to justify that
in the context ofthe community plan and basically where we want to go in terms of a mix.
MR. MATSUI: You know if you look at their development, they're providing, you know, a large
acreage in parks, not active parks, but, you know, smaller type parks, green space, and, and we're
satisfied with that. We felt that would meet the non-active field type of parks, and on top of that
we're getting their cash contribution which, like you said, we intend to use in developing our
South Maui District park. So we're getting both, you know, the good from both ends. So-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And with regard to the Little League field, though?
MR. MATSUI: We felt, well, that Little League field as far as the location being there we felt would be
better utilized at the district park level. So we were taking that money to develop the district
park which has Little League fields, softball fields, soccer fields, and that kind of thing within a
combined setting where, you know, you have all of the fields at one place instead of fields spread
out over Kihei. So-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And have you gone back and held community meetings so that
you're sure that that's where the community wants to go? Because T think how this was
developed over time was because of the comments that were made at these many community
meetings. So, I just want to, I want to hear from you, has this been discussed with the
community, have you taken it out, and is this the direction they want to go?
MR. MATSUI: When we, we're preparing the master plan for the district park, we did go out to the
community and what was planned there on that 40-acre parcel was what the priority for the
community, and they agreed with us that that's what they wanted. As the applicant has described
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his development, you know, we, we didn't see that the type of people that's gonna be in that
subdivision, we don't see a great need for a lot of active fields. And, and so, you know,
we ... that's our plan is to go back to the district park and develop that for the greater community
as well as, you know, it's, it's going to benefit some of the residents within the Wailea 670 also.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So you believe that you have gathered sufficient community input to
justify changing that direction from where the developer wanted to go?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And my final question, and I know Councilmember Tavares
is not here to ask it, but the other day in Committee the subject of softball came up. Are there
any provisions within the park plans where softball could be accommodated because this is a
whole segment that really feels neglected.
MR. MATSUI: We're, we're planning ... --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... ball fields in the district park.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Now separate, though, or will they be dual, dual use?
MR. MATSUI: We're planning three fields. One would be specifically for Little League. The other
two will be larger for softball, but then, you know, you can always have Little League games in a
larger field.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Alright. That, that's all my questions. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Mateo, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Matsui, good afternoon. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I, I guess the
easiest way to do it is just to ask the direct question. I think one of the concerns that I have is .. .I
don't know if it's a lack of. . .it's not a lack of confidence, but how soon could the Parks
Department actually get a district park done, you know, in our lifetime or, or would the developer
be the best choice in actually getting the park done? And it has nothing to do with yourself in, in
the, in the position, but the reality is the County takes a long time, and the district park to meet
the area residents' needs, we cannot wait the full term of this 20-year project to happen before we
get the district park. So could, could you kind of like speak to that?
MR. MATSUI: You know, we started the construction design for the district park over a year ago, and
then they still ... some permitting we had to do, like SMA. We're just completing our
environmental impact, environmental assessment for that. The traffic study, we did that. So
we're about ready to go. The problem is we don't have construction funds. Now this project has
been a priority for our Department the last two years and every year, you know, it come back
there's no funds. And so, you know, we, we're looking at an overall--if you look at our budget
the past few years, I would say 90 percent of our budget has been through the Park Assessment
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Fund. Okay. So really, in reality, we're looking at park assessments, either that or floating some
kind of GO. bond for the project.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: So, you know, and, and the district park, we're talking about a gymnasium, three soccer
fields, three ball fields. So, you know, we're looking at ...the last estimate was like $15 million.
So, you know, that's a lot of money... you know, we felt this project would go a lot to funding
this district park. So that is our strategy.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And, and once, once say the monies would be secured, then it
would, you would not have the ability to use it for other parks in, in the same district? The
monies would be specifically earmarked for this specific district park?
MR. MATSUI: The Park Assessment Fund, you know, the developer contributes to that, but then the
money is appropriated through the normal CIP process. So, you know, it needs the Council's
approval. So, you know, like you said, the Administration can propose it and then the Council
needs to also agree to it. So it would go through their normal budgetary process, you know, we
cannot just take the money and just throw it in whatever project we want. We're limited to have,
spending the money in the community plan district.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Matsui. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I, I was going to ask him about the same questions
like Member Mateo. Because of the park requirements in Kihei especially, I, I do get phone calls
from time to time in regards to not enough, in this case, soccer fields. The possibility of having
the developer do the park at. .. do the district park, your, your ball fields, your soccer fields, even
the gymnasium, and whatever is leftover from whatever assessments that's being done go to the
park assessment fees or is part of the assessment fees for Kihei. In, in that case.. .if we did it in
that way, you could also improve your facilities at Kalama Park. What is your take in having the
developer do the district park, the gymnasium, the three ball fields, the three soccer fields?
MR. MATSUI: Where we are now, you know, we've, we're developing construction plans. I don't
think it'll, you know, speed up the process 'cause we would still need to get an SMA permit and,
you know, those entitlements. You know we might save one or two months, but then we still
have to go through some kind of agreement with the developer, you know, where this, the money
goes for this project. So, you know, I don't think it's gorma really speed up the process.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, not. . .it probably will speed up the process, it probably will be
completed on time because there's a lot of pressure on the developer in completing anything, any
conditions that we put on, and we can put on a condition that this park be completed by... you
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know... and, and in that way we know that Kihei will have a park that will meet the needs of the
community....You got any comments to that?
MR. MATSUI: Well, for one, the total fees from this development would not fully fund the park. We
won't be able to build the whole park with, you know... and, and I don't think, I think the money
will be coming in as certain phases come through. So-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: But-- I'm sorry.
MR. MATSUI: --you know, there's a cash flow kind of thing, yeah. They're not going to give us all the,
the money right now 'cause they're not developing everything right now.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, but for our needs ...we, we, you know, a condition will take care
ofthat in regards to having the developer build and complete this thing...um... on a more timely
basis. And, and maybe, Chair, at this time if we could have some comments from the developer
himself in regards to what I just asked the Parks Department, if that's permissible.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objection to calling the developer-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: --to the floor? Mr. Jencks, could you please come down?
MR. JENCKS: Mr. Chair, what was the question?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: The question is, you know, we certainly need parks in Kihei and one of
the ... thing that or ideas that I had in my mind was the developer create the park for the County
as part of a condition on this particular project. That way we know that the parks, the park will
be built. .. for sure in Kihei in our time.
MR. JENCKS: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and, you know, hearing from the Parks Department, you know,
they have their plans all made, already drawn out, they're going through the approval
process ... the possibility of utilizing their work to create this park by you folks doing it.
MR. JENCKS: Mr. Chair, ifI may.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Jencks.
MR. JENCKS: We have talked about that, and not specifically with Pat or the Parks Department, but we
have talked within the partnership about that idea and, III fact, I think,
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Councilmember Pontanilla, that you're on target. The folks in South Maui want to see
something done. They understand that projects pay park fees and they pay, and they pay, but
what do we get, what does the community get back in return? So the idea of the project taking
on the responsibility and getting something accomplished for South Maui is, I think, a really
good idea. We have talked about the--you know, we started with a $3.5 million contribution for
the Little League facility and then the four years that we talked about that from the Parks
Department, you know, land values and the cost of materials, labor have gone up to now it's
$5 million, which is an estimate that, that is, is valid and, and demonstrates cost of value in time
and money. That $5 million in addition to monies that could be put in and get credit for against
park fees could help get this park going. We could talk about how you want to do it in phases,
but we're still certainly willing to help out in that regard and get a park accomplished for South
Maui that ties in with the development of the project so something is realized as a result of the
project approval.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. As, as you know, you know, part of the, the plan was to do,
you know, the three ball fields, the three soccer fields, and a gymnasium. We know that the
district park is located next to Kihei School-MR. JENCKS: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --which will directly benefit from, from this particular proposal in
regards to the park. So, yeah, if we could work in with, you know, in a partnership to get this
thing done, you know, sooner than, you know, we can or as soon as we can ... you know, I can
support something like that.
MR. JENCKS: We're certainly willing to do that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Jencks. Thank you for being
open to the idea of putting the Little League parks together. It just brings to mind a developer
over the last several years that put together an elementary school in the region a lot faster than
the State of Hawaii for that, for the South Maui region. Would you be open to putting a high
school in the South Maui? And I'm just teasing.
AUDIENCE: ... (chuckle) . ..
MR. JENCKS: No.
.. .(chuckle). . .
Getting back to the Little League
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
...
um
...
would
you
be,
I
guess,
open
to
including
all the bells and whistles that go with a
field
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Little League field, for example, lighting or the scoreboards? I mean is that something that
has ... you've, you've considered?
MR. JENCKS: Well, sure. I, I think all of this is ... you gotta look at this within the context of a park
plan, and I, and I do not know what, what Pat's plans are. I don't know if they've gone that far
yet. But the idea here is to use our park credit that we would pay...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. JENCKS: ... and, granted, it would be paid over a period of time if we just did it unit by unit and
someway to fund the park, and there's only so many park credit fees we're going to pay, but
today it's in excess of 16 million if you look at 1,400 units. Now this includes, by the way,
gentlemen, affordable and market rate--everybody pays, okay, everybody pays a park fee because
everybody uses the park. We're in excess of 16 million today and that park fee is going to go up
July 1 to maybe .. .it's 11,008, it's going to go up to maybe 13,000 or more per DU. So the idea
is use those park fees to get this thing developed to whatever the standard is as far as that money
goes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: The issue of time was brought up. As we all know, government can
take awhile to put a facility up. If your project were approved, how soon thereafter do you think,
you know, you, you folks could put up a park or parks?
MR. JENCKS: I think it, the, the ideal situation would be for the Parks Department to work with us on
the design, get the design fully pennitted, and that's going to take them awhile. It's probably
going to take me a couple of years before I get through Phase II on my first phase. I, I think it
would tie in with that timeframe when we start in the project, we start the parks. So there's a
parallel course here--development taking place, park being built. That seems to be a reasonable
approach.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Yeah. Overall it sounds like a little faster than doing it the
other way.
MR. JENCKS: I, I don't like to waste a lot oftime and get the job done.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I know the folks out there in South Maui are pretty demanding right
now with the, especially with the need for the ball fields and everything else that goes with it.
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we are going to come to the end of our day. We are going to lose
quorum because we have a Member that has to leave and several of you have commitments
today. I had intended to, if we had more Members, to ask if we could have a recessed meeting,
but we do not have enough Members to be able to do this after dinner. I would like to thank all
of you for attending today and the Staff and all those in our gallery, and especially those that
have attended us through cable television.
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This meeting of--is there any announcements? If not, this meeting of June 21 st, Land Use
Committee stands adjourned.... (gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS
ACTION:

(excused: MA, RH, JJ, CT).

DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 5:25 p.m.

APPROVED:

ROBERT CARROLL, Chair
Land Use Committee
lu:min:060621 :If

Transcribed by: Tammy M. Frias
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